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Biographical Details of Directors

EEEABE

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wu Kebo (“Mr. Wu")

Aged 50

Mr. Wu is the chairman, executive director and a member of the
remuneration committee and the chairman of the nomination committee
of the Company, and currently a director of Orange Sky Entertainment
Group (International) Holding Company Limited (“OSEG") and its
subsidiaries. OSEG, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and being a substantial shareholder of the Company,
was founded by Mr. Wu in 2004 and is principally engaged in music and
musical production, artist management and advertising business in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Mr. Wu is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. With regard to film, Mr. Wu acted
respectively as executive producer of the two Chinese films Red Cliff and
The Warlords, as well as producer of other Chinese titles including Call for
Love, I am Liu Yuejin and Dangerous Games. In addition, Mr. Wu has been
involved in high technology and telecommunications businesses since the
1990s. Mr. Wu graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in business
administration from the SOKA University Japan in 1992. Mr. Wu joined the
Company in October 2007 and is the brother of Ms. Wu Keyan, an
executive director of the Company.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Mao Yimin (“Mr. Mao")

Aged 36

Mr. Mao is an executive director and has been appointed as the chief
financial officer of the Company (“CFO") since 17 June 2013 and has
been appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company (“CEQ")
since 1 August 2011. Mr. Mao held the office of the CFO during the
period from 6 May 2011 to 1 January 2012. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Before joining the Company, Mr. Mao was a
senior manager at KPMG Advisory (China) Limited (“KPMG") who
specialised in transaction services and risk management. Mr. Mao has
extensive investment advisory and industry-related experience, particularly
in manufacturing, retail, media and real estate. Prior to joining KPMG, Mr.
Mao served for large Australian Securities Exchange listed companies,
where he had built up strong statutory reporting, financial analysis, and
risk control and merger and acquisition experience. Mr. Mao graduated
from the University of New South Wales in Australia with a master’s
degree in commerce in 2003 and he is also a member of the Australian
Society of Certified Practising Accountants.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Pei Sen (“Mr. Li")

Aged 66

Mr. Li joined the Company as a non-executive director in March 2009 and
was re-designated as an executive director of the Company in April 2010.
He is also the associate chairman of OSEG. Mr. Li was an associate director
of China TV Production Centre in 1994 and the general manager of China
Central Television in 1996. In 1997, Mr. Li joined China International
Television Corporation (“TVC") as president and was involved in its
corporate structuring. During his presidency at TVC, Mr. Li was also in
charge of television production, as well as the domestic and global
licensing business of Chinese television programmes. Prior to joining OSEG
as the associate chairman, Mr. Li served as the director of China TV
Production Centre in 2000. Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in film
and television series production and acted as the producer of more than a
thousand episodes of television series, including a number of popular and
high audience rating titles such as All men are brothers: blood of the
leopard, Taiping Heavenly Kingdom, Vernacular stories from the end of
Western Zhou Dynasty to the Qin Dynasty and The story of Hongkong and
cartoon series Journey to the West. In addition, Mr. Li is also a committee
member of the China Federation of Literary and Art Circles, a council
member of China TV Workers’ Association, the vice-president of China TV,
Film Productions Committee, a member of the censorship expert
committee of State Administration of Radio, Film and Television, and a
consultant to TVC.

Ms. Wu Keyan (“Ms. Wu")

Aged 42

Ms. Wu is an executive director of the Company. She was re-designated as
an executive director on 9 September 2010 and prior to that, she had
been an alternate director to Mr. Wu since January 2008. She is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Wu has been a senior
manager of the Administration and Human Resources Department of the
Group since 1 January 2008 and is responsible for the administrative
management of the Company’s head office in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Ms. Wu has served in various corporations in Japan and Hong Kong and is
currently the deputy general manager of Holdrich Investment Limited, a
company principally engaged in telecommunications, semiconductor and
technology-related businesses. Ms. Wu graduated with a bachelor’s
degree in business management from the Faculty of Commerce at
Takushyoku University in Japan in 1996. Ms. Wu is the sister of Mr. Wu.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEEABE

Mpr. Tan Boon Pin Simon (“Mr. Tan")

Aged 45

Mr. Tan was appointed as an executive director and acting chief operations
officer of the Company on 23 August 2010. Mr. Tan manages the
Company'’s operations in Taiwan, and is the general manager of Vie Show
Cinemas Co. Ltd., a Taiwan incorporated company which is owned as to
35.71% by the Company, and the general manager of Vie Vision Pictures
Co. Ltd., a Taiwan incorporated company in which the Company holds
23.21% indirect interest. Mr. Tan is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. He joined the Company in 2001 as a general manager,
exhibition. Prior to that, he had worked with Golden Village Multiplex Pte
Ltd, a company which is owned as to 50% by the Company, since 1992.
Mr. Tan holds a master’s degree in business administration in Nanyang
Technological University’s Nanyang Fellows Program. He graduated from
Western lllinois University with a bachelor’s degree in business with majors
in finance and economics.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Man Kit Michael (“Mr. Leung”)

Aged 60

Mr. Leung has been an independent non-executive director, and the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company since February 2008 and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company since 26 March 2012. Mr. Leung
obtained a bachelor’s degree in social science from the University of Hong
Kong in 1977 and has over 30 years of experience in project finance and
corporate finance. He has held senior positions with Peregrine Capital
(China) Limited, SG Securities (HK) Limited (previously known as Crosby
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited), Swiss Bank Corporation, Hong Kong
Branch. Mr. Leung was also a director of Emerging Markets Partnership
(Hong Kong) Limited which was the principal adviser to the AIG
Infrastructure Fund L.P.

Mr. Leung serves as an independent non-executive director of NetEase,
Inc., a NASDAQ listed company. He also serves as an independent non-
executive director of China Ting Group Holdings Limited, China Huiyuan
Juice Group Limited and Optics Valley Union Holding Company Limited;
and as an executive director of Chanceton Financial Group Limited, all of
which are companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”). Mr. Leung was an independent non-executive
director of Anhui Expressway Company Limited for the period from August
2005 to August 2011 and Junefield Department Store Group Limited for
the period from December 2002 to May 2013, both companies being
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Huang Shao-Hua George (“Mr. Huang”)

Aged 65

Mr. Huang has been an independent non-executive director and a member
of the audit committee of the Company since November 2006. Mr. Huang
graduated from the College of Telecommunications Engineering, National
Chiao-Tung University in Taiwan in 1971, and co-founded the Acer Group
in 1976. He has been heavily involved in the development of
microprocessor technology applications and services and was the first
person in Taiwan to promote and sell microcomputers to international
markets in 1979. Mr. Huang is presently a supervisor of Acer Inc., Motech
Co., Ltd, and Les Enphants Co., Ltd., which are all public companies in
Taiwan. He was distinguished as an honoured graduate of National Chiao-
Tung University in Taiwan in 1996.

Ms. Wong Sze Wing (“Ms. Wong")

Aged 35

Ms. Wong was appointed as an independent non-executive director and a
member of the remuneration committee and the audit committee of the
Company with effect from 26 April 2010. She has been appointed as the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company and a member
of the nomination committee since 26 March 2012. Ms. Wong has over
ten years of accounting experience in the profession. She is the chief
financial officer and joint company secretary of Yingde Gases Group
Company Limited which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
and a constituent stock of Hang Seng Composite Index. Ms. Wong was
previously employed as the group chief financial officer of OSEG. She was
also previously employed as the financial controller of Avex China
Company Limited, a PRC joint venture company established by OSEG and
Avex Group Holdings Inc., which is listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange.
Ms. Wong ceased to be the group chief financial officer of OSEG and
financial controller of Avex China Company Limited in January 2008. She
was also previously employed as a manager at PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Ms. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration from
the University of Hong Kong in 2001. She also obtained an EMBA from
the China Europe International Business School in 2012. Ms. Wong
became a chartered member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in 2003.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

In 2013, the market box office receipts in Hong Kong, Taiwan and
Singapore recorded 4%, 5% and 5% growth from 2012 in local currency,
respectively. In late December 2013, the Group opened its very first new
concept cinema “the sky” at Hong Kong Olympian City, this high-end 6
house cinema equipped with the most advanced Dolby Atoms sound
system; a “Vivo"” deluxe house with comfortable electronic recliner seats
together with unlimited serving of soft drinks and popcorn to our
audiences and wide-range food and beverage choices offered to our
patrons that made “the sky” pop out from other competitors. The Group
will keep developing its film exhibition business through market
penetration to consolidate our leading position in specific regions and is
confident that our business in these developed markets will safeguard the
overall profitability. The Group will also actively identify merger and
acquisition opportunities in Asian market so as to accelerate its pace of
development in the film exhibition business and uplift our market share.
We will dedicate our efforts in formulating strategic plans across Asia and
optimising our development in a discreet manner to outrun and distinguish
the Group from other competitors within the industry.

In order to offer a diversified moving viewing experience to our audiences,
the Group shall continue to install advanced equipment in theatres such as
panorama Dolby Atoms sound system, digital IMAX screen, 4K Projection
System and D-Box motion chair in all our operating regions.

The performance of our production and distribution businesses was also
encouraging in year 2013. In Mainland China, the Group'’s invested film
No Man’s Land was finally released in early December 2013 after a four-
year scanning period and successfully recorded RMB24 million box office
receipts on the first-day launch, the accumulated box office receipts of No
Man’s Land reached over RMB250 million. For distribution business, the
Group will continue to expand our distribution scale through sourcing
quality films from overseas and looking for good scripts for Chinese
language film and TV drama series co-production. The Group will
participate in small-medium scale Chinese language film productions and
the remake project for “Golden Harvest Classic Movie Series” in the
coming years.
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PROSPECTS

The film exhibition performance in Mainland China during Chinese New
Year 2014 achieved another record high of RMB1.4 billion box office
receipts; representing an 80% increase as compared with the same period
of last year which excited all industry players. The record breaking result
strengthens our confidence in focusing our network expansion in PRC
region and our drive to keep delivering superior and innovative movie-
viewing experience to our patrons. We will reinforce our film distribution
and production business to enhance the presence of Orange Sky Golden
Harvest as one of the top Chinese movie branded company and the best-
in-class integrator of the movie entertainment industry across Asia.

Last but not least, | am profoundly grateful to my fellow directors for their
unceasing support to the Board while together with our management
team that made 2013 another year of success. Also, my statement cannot
end without expressing my heartfelt thanks to all our stakeholders —
audiences, business partners, bankers, shareholders, suppliers and
employees for their dedication and support to the Group during the year
and we look forward to their continued support for the betterment of our
business in the years to come.

Chairman’s Statement
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MAINLAND CHINA CINEMA NETWORK
in the Coming Two Years

Central Western .
3 N 18 Cinemas / 3
China Region
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BEENWR D

OPERATION AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Riding on steady recovery of the global economy as well as satisfactory
performance of mature cinemas in our operating territories during the
year, the Group showed an impressive growth in 2013. During the year,
the Group's profit attributable to equity holders increased 20% to HK$115
million as compared with last year. The Group's turnover rose by 16% to
HK$929 million and the gross profit margin was maintained at 61%
(2012: 60%). Box office receipts of the Group’s multiplexes in Mainland
China increased 39%. However, box office receipts of Hong Kong's
cinemas recorded a decline of 28% when compared to last year due to
the closure of GH Mongkok and temporary closure of two cinemas for
renovation. The Group's operating EBITDA amounted to HK$258 million,
representing a rise of 44% from HK$179 million last year. Up to the date
of this annual report, the board of directors of a joint venture (Vie Show
Cinemas Co. Ltd) had not approved its financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and had not provided written representations in
this regard as they need more time to finalise the financial statements.
Therefore, the auditors of Vie Show Cinemas Co. Ltd currently were
unable to issue an audit opinion in respect of the financial statements of
Vie Show Cinemas Co. Ltd for the year ended 31 December 2013.

As at 31 December 2013, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group
amounted to HK$535 million (2012: HK$575 million). The Group's gearing
ratio increased to 30% (2012: 24%). It was mainly due to the increase in
the bank borrowings for the Group’s development of cinema networks in
Mainland China and the purchase of office premises in Hong Kong during
the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Film Exhibition

During the year, the Group opened 7 cinemas with 48 screens in Mainland
China and 1 “the sky” cinema with 5 houses and 1 deluxe “Vivo" house in
Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2013, the Group operated 77 cinemas with
574 screens across Mainland China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore. The
Group's cinemas served 40 million guests, compared to 34 million guests last
year. Gross box office receipts on a full and aggregated basis, were registered
at HK$2,198 million, representing a gradual growth of 11% from last year.
The major Hollywood blockbusters released this year were Iron Man 3, Fast &
Furious 6, Pacific Rim and Marvel’s Thor: The Dark World. The major Chinese-
language blockbusters were Journey to the West: Conquering the Demons (2
B - [RERE), So Young (E(E 48454 £ % &) and Personal Tailor (74 A
&7#1) in Mainland China, Unbeatable ({#) in Hong Kong, David Loman (X
JE#£42) in Taiwan and Ah Boys to Men: Part 2 (¥74£IF{# 2) in Singapore.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

OPERATING STATISTICS OF THE GROUP’S
CINEMAS

Mainland
China HongKong  Taiwan Singapore
Number of cinemas* 49 6 11 1
(note)
Number of screens* 354 24 109 87
Admissions (million) 12.9 2.0 15.3 9.7
Net average ticket price (HK$) 39 69 62 58

* as at 31 December 2013
Note: 2 more cinemas in Mainland China have completed construction and are
applying for licenses, which are expected to open in April/May 2014.

The Group is committed to provide a high-class, comfortable and
diversified viewing experience for our valuable audiences. All screens in the
Group's operating regions have been fully installed with digital equipment,
of which over 60% are 3D compatible. The Group has installed 2 digital
IMAX® screens in Tianjin multiplex and Changzhou multiplex and ultra-
high resolution SONY 4K Projection System in most of our Mainland China
multiplexes. In Hong Kong, the Group introduced its very first “the sky”
new concept cinema at Olympian City and giant screen at Ocean Terminal,
both cinemas are equipped with the most advanced panorama Dolby
Atmos sound system and D-Box Motion Chairs. In Taiwan, the Group is
the exclusive digital IMAX® operator and has 6 digital IMAX® screens.
During the year, 1 traditional screen has been converted to a 4DX theatre
equipped with motion seats plus special effects such as wind, fog, lighting
and scents; a new business-class multiplex served by a dedicated catering
team was also introduced. In Singapore, the Group operates 6 Gold Class
multiplexes with private lounges and plush electronic recliner seats
installed to accommodate our VIPs and members.
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BEEENWE D

Apart from providing the best visual and audio experience to our
audiences, the Group also offers a wide variety of quality food and
beverages to cater for rapid changing consumer expectations on ancillary
movie-going experience.

Non-box office receipts on a full and aggregated basis totalled HK$783
million, representing a growth of 7% compared to last year. In Mainland
China, a new candy counter branded “L'Oranger” was introduced during
the year, selling different types of sweet products like macaroons, cakes,
tarts and chocolate with a relatively higher price point. In Taiwan, we
introduced self-made popcorn in some cinemas which allows customers to
participate in part of the food making process so as to enhance their joyful
experience at our cinemas. With all these new and innovative business
trials, we aim at strengthening our non-box office income growth and
ultimately drive the overall profitability for cinema operation.

Mainland China
OPERATING STATISTICS OF THE GROUP'S CINEMAS IN MAINLAND CHINA

2013 2012
Number of cinemas* 49 42
(note)
Number of screens* 354 306
Admissions (million) 12.9 8.3
Net average ticket price (RMB) 31 35
Gross box office receipts ticket price 438 315
(RMB million)*
* as at 31 December 2013
# before deduction of government taxes and charges
Note: 2 more cinemas in Mainland China have completed construction and are

applying for licenses, which are expected to open in April/May 2014
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Management Discussion & Analysis

In 2013, the market gross box office receipts of urban areas in Mainland
China increased to RMB21.8 billion by 27% while the Group’s gross box
office receipts generated by multiplexes in Mainland China increased by
39% compared with last year. During the year, the Group opened 7 new
cinemas with 48 screens in the cities of Beijing, Dongguang, Fushun, Jinan,
Maanshan, Nantong and Yancheng. Thanks to a strong Chinese films line-
up during the year, growing demand for a high quality entertainment
experience and favourable policies implemented by the Chinese
government, the Group’s multiplexes in Mainland China served
approximately 13 million patrons, representing 56% growth from last
year. The average ticket price dropped from RMB35 to RMB31 because
fewer 3D films with higher ticket prices were released during the year and
more discount promotions were offered for our newly opened multiplexes
as well as special group ticket promotion campaigns to maintain our
competitiveness with other cinema operators. We shall further refine and
upgrade our cinema service by offering a better value for money
experience to drive the growth of the average ticket price and increase our
concessionary sales income with better margins. The contribution from the
exhibition business in Mainland China to the Group is still under pressure
due to the incubation period of newly opened cinemas.

OSGH PRC CINEMAS
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Hong Kong
OPERATING STATISTICS OF THE GROUP’'S CINEMAS IN HONG KONG

2013 2012
Number of cinemas** 6 6
Number of screens*# 24 26
Admissions (million) 2.0 2.9
Net average ticket price (HK$) 69 66
Gross box office receipts ticket price (HK$ million) 139 193
* as at 31 December 2013
# Mongkok GH Cinema was closed in February 2013 while “the sky” at

Olympian City was opened in late December 2013

During the year, the Hong Kong market as a whole recorded box office
receipts of HK$1.62 billion, slightly up by 4% from HK$1.56 billion last
year. The Group’'s cinemas in Hong Kong recorded lower box office
receipts at HK$139 million this year (2012: HK$193 million) due to the
closure of GH Mongkok with 8 screens in February 2013, two-month
partial closure of GH Tsing Yi and two-month full closure of Grand Ocean
for renovation. Excluding GH Mongkok, the total box office receipts of the
other cinemas increased by approximately 14% which indeed
outperformed the general market growth for the year. In late December
2013, the Group opened its very first new concept cinema “the sky” at
Olympian City, a high-end 6-house cinema all equipped with the most
advanced Dolby Atmos sound system; a “Vivo" deluxe house with
comfortable electronic recliner seats together with unlimited serving of
soft drinks and popcorn to our audiences; wide-range food and beverage
choices offered to our patrons make “the sky” stand out from other
competitors. Affirmed by an overwhelming and positive response from the
market, the Group is evaluating other suitable locations in the region to
open “the sky” to further enhance our corporate image and
competitiveness in the industry.
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Taiwan
OPERATING STATISTICS OF THE GROUP'S CINEMAS IN TAIWAN

2013 2012
Number of cinemas* 1 11
Number of screens* 109 109
Admissions (million) 15.3 13.9
Net average ticket price (NTD) 238 244
Gross box office receipts ticket price (NTD million) 3,639 3,391

* as at 31 December 2013

Taipei City’s market box office receipts showed a mild rise by 5% from
NTD3,616 million to NTD3,795 million. The Group’s 35.71%-owned Vie
Show cinema circuit recorded 7% and 10% growth in box office receipts
and admissions respectively as compared with last year. The growth was
mainly due to the satisfactory performance of Hsinchu Big City which
opened in April 2013. The slight decline in average ticket price was mainly
due to the effect of fewer popular 3D films with higher ticket prices
released during the year. The market share of Vie Show in Taiwan
remained at about 42%. During the year, Vie Show has converted 1
traditional screen to the first 4DX multiplex in Taiwan. The Group’s share
of profit for the year from Vie Show declined to HK$34 million. The
decrease of film royalty income contributed to the drop in both revenue
and profit for the year 2013. In addition, increases in rental and utilities
expenses also contributed to the operating pressure within the region.

OSGH TAIWAN CINEMAS
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RAERBEZHNBE AR
Million & & AKX

BEEERWR DT

aE
AEEG BN S BEEIE

—E-=F —ZT——F
FWE B * 11 11
REHE 109 109
ASBR(BEAR) 15.3 13.9
FIREE(FAE) 238 244
EERBBAZEB(EEHNAY) 3,639 3,391

* BE-_T—=F+=-A=+—8

AUATHEEWRAHCIEFTFSERAS%E
37.95BFE M - REBEBEAF3S.71% BaMEFT
BIZERWARABARDAIREFERETN K
10%  TEHR =M AHENTTEBE
FWREES - PATHEEREK  TERAR
FRIMSEENIDEXZNEERLIE - BRFE
BENMBIEAERERROL2% TR BHEB—
REFBRENEKNEEETRIDXZEEN - FAKX
EEDERFEHENRADE3400887T TERA
BB AR D - EH T —=Fm U %R
BEFTTNE - o e R AR ERRINEE R
BIBEBKES -

OSGH TAIWAN CINEMAS
BOX OFFICE RECEIPTS
BRRERGEBTHNEERA

HK$million & &% 7T

2009-2013 2009-2013
SEFERE ! 16.9¢ AEMER 22,00
CAGR: 16.9% 15.3 CAGR: 22.0%
13.9
—~—
12.1
a— 946.2
881.7 ~
9.3 —
8.2
774.8
~
4269 551.4 |
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

REBKING (EE)ERAT £ 2013 2]



Management Discussion & Analysis
BEENWR D

Singapore
OPERATING STATISTICS OF THE GROUP'S CINEMAS IN SINGAPORE

2013 2012

Number of cinemas* 11 11

Number of screens* 87 87

Admissions (million) 9.7 9.1

Net average ticket price (S$) 9.3 9.2
Gross box office receipts ticket price

(S$ million) 91 83

* as at 31 December 2013

The Singapore market's box office receipts totalled $$204 million in 2013,
mildly up from S$194 million last year. The Group’s 50%-owned Golden
Village cinema circuit maintained its leading position with market share of
45% by reporting box office receipts of S$91 million for the year with
approximately 10% growth compared with last year. Newly opened GV
City Square in November 2012, newly renovated GV Jurong Point and GV
Plaza Singapura performed well and contributed satisfactory results to the
Group. During the year, GV Grand was temporarily closed for renovation
from September to October 2013 which affected the bottom line in the
short term. Excluding the impact of tax credits from settlement of a tax
dispute and reversal of tax provisions due to the retrospective application
of new tax legislation amounting to HK$6 million in aggregate in 2012,
the Group's share of profit for the year from Golden Village increased to
HK$53 million by 8% compared to last year.
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Film & TV Programme Distribution and Production

It was a fruitful year for the Group'’s film & TV programme distribution and
production business. This business sector recorded revenue of HK$129
million (2012: HK$110 million) and distributed over 127 films in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Singapore and Taiwan. In Mainland China, the Group'’s
invested film No Man’s Land was finally released in early December 2013
after a four-year censorship approval which has become a hot topic for
discussion before official launch. No Man's Land recorded RMB24 million
box office receipts on the first day launch and topped the box office
throne. The accumulated box office receipts finally reached over RMB250
million and generated satisfactory earnings to the Group. For distribution,
the Group distributed good quality overseas films such as Colombiana and
Iron Lady in Mainland China, with gross box office receipts over RMB55
million in total. In Hong Kong, the Group distributed several well-received
Chinese films like Out Of Inferno, Rigor Mortis and The White Storm
during the year. The Group will continue to expand our distribution
business across Asia-Pacific regions and Mainland China by sourcing more
quality films from both overseas film festival and local productions. In
addition, the Chinese TV drama series £ &{%% contributed positive returns
to the Group during the year. The Group's film library of more than 140
films and TV titles with perpetual distribution rights continued to contribute
steady licensing income to the Group.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the Group will further expand its cinema networks, both
at home and abroad. The Group will actively identify merger and
acquisition opportunities in Mainland China and other Asian markets,
strengthen the movie production and distribution business, enhance the
brand awareness of Orange Sky Golden Harvest as a premier Chinese
movie brand, and eventually achieve the goal of becoming a leading
integrator of the movie entertainment industry across Asia.

As at 28 March 2014, the Group operated 49 cinemas with 354 screens in
Mainland China and 4 cinemas with 28 screens are in various stages of
internal renovation and are in the pipeline for opening. By end of 2015,
the Group expects to operate 81 cinemas with 597 screens in various cities
in Mainland China based on lease agreements signed as at 28 March
2014. The captioned numbers above may vary due to the actual handover
date, the progress of internal renovation, application for relevant licences
and the entering of new lease agreements during the period. In Taiwan,
the Group plans to renovate one cinema and open two new cinemas in
Maoli and Tainan in the second half of 2014. In Singapore, the Group also
plans to renovate one cinema and open a 11 screens cinema in the last
quarter of 2014. To drive our box office income, the Group will put more
effort in increasing the numbers of admission by introducing and providing
higher quality service, advance and comfortable dynamic viewing
experiences and various food & beverage choices to attract more patrons.
The Group will also try to develop new business models which can increase
our non-box office income and customer spending per person. In addition,
standardisation of work and operation process as well as cost control
policies will also help to improve the profitability in specific regions.
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The outlook for 2014 is that the Group will continue to expand the scale
of distribution and production business through sourcing a variety of
movie genres for distribution and reviewing quality scripts for Chinese
language film and TV drama series co-production. The Group will
participate in small-medium scale Chinese language film production. The
remake of “Golden Harvest Classic Movie Series” project has already
started in 2013. For instance , Fly me to the Polaris 2 is not just the
extension of Cecilia Cheung and Richie's version of Fly Me to Polaris, but a
more contemporary story with new production crews using pioneer ultra-
high-definition Sony 4K digital filming techniques. The film is in full swing
preparatory phase and is expected to reach our audiences in 2014.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group maintained a stable financial position throughout the year. It
financed its operations from internal funding, bank borrowings and
accumulated retained earnings. As at 31 December 2013, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$535 million (2012: HK$575
million). The Group’s outstanding bank loans totalled HK$935 million
(2012: HK$610 million). The increase in bank loans was mainly for
financing various cinema projects in Mainland China and office premises
purchased in Hong Kong. Details of bank loans including of terms of the
loans, interest rates, currencies and securities are disclosed in note 24 to
the financial statements. As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s gearing
ratio, calculated on the basis of external borrowings over total assets stood
at 30% (2012: 24%). As at 31 December 2013, the group has HK$47
million pledged cash balance to secure its borrowings. Management will
continue to monitor the gearing structure and make necessary adjustments
in light of changes in the Group’s development plan and economic
conditions to minimise the potential risk. Currently, the Group has strong
liquidity and reasonable financial leverage. In order to cope with the rapid
expansion, the Group will utilise the available bank loan facilities to finance
the cinema projects in Mainland China and other investment opportunities.
The Group believes that its current cash holding and available banking
facilities will be sufficient to fund its working capital requirement and its
financial position remains sound for continuous expansion.

The Group's assets and liabilities are principally denominated in Hong
Kong dollar and Renminbi, except for certain assets and liabilities
associated with the investments in Singapore and Taiwan. The overseas
joint ventures of the Group are operating in their local currencies and
subject to minimal exchange rate risk. Management will continue to assess
the exchange rate risk exposure, and will consider possible hedging
measures in order to minimise the risk at reasonable costs. The Group did
not have any significant contingent liabilities or off-balance sheet
obligations as at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 1,426 (2012: 1,395) permanent
employees. The Group remunerates its employees mainly by reference to
industry practice. In addition to salaries, commissions and discretionary
bonuses, incentive share options may be granted to certain employees
subject to individual performance. The Group also operates a defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance and as at 31 December 2013, there was no
forfeited contribution arising from employees leaving the retirement
benefit scheme.
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board recognises the importance of good corporate governance to
maintain the Group’s competitiveness and lead to its healthy growth. The
Company has taken steps not only to comply with code provisions as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) but also to aim at enhancing corporate governance of
the Group as a whole.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has complied with
the code provisions of the CG Code except for the deviation from code
provision A.4.1 of the CG Code with considered reasons as explained
below.

Pursuant to code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
of a listed issuer should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. All non-executive directors of the Company were not appointed
for a specific term but are subject to the requirement of retirement by
rotation and re-election at least once every three years at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws, accomplishing the same purpose as
being appointed for a specific term.

As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken
to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the code provisions of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code on terms no less exacting than
those set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). The
Company has made specific enquiries with all the directors of the
Company (the “Director(s)”) and all of them have confirmed that they had
complied with the requirements set out in the Model Code and the
Company'’s code for the year ended 31 December 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five executive
Directors (including the Chairman of the Board) and three independent
non-executive Directors, whose biographical details are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 4 to 7 of this annual report.
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The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management of the
business and affairs of the Group. The Board meets regularly throughout
the year to discuss the overall strategies as well as operation and financial
performances of the Group. Matters relating to (i) the formulation of the
Group's overall strategy and directions; (ii) any material conflict of interest
of substantial shareholders of the Company or Directors; (iii) approval of
the Group’s annual results, annual budgets, interim results and other
significant operational and financial transactions; (iv) changes to the
Company'’s capital structure; and (v) major appointments to the Board are
reserved for decisions by the Board. The Board has delegated the day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the Group and
implementation and execution of Board policies and strategies to the
executive Directors and management of the Company.

All Directors have given sufficient time and effort to the affairs of the
Group and they have full and timely access to all relevant information
regarding the Group’s affairs and have unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the company secretary. The Directors may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses in carrying
out their duties and responsibilities.

Appropriate and sufficient insurance coverage has been effected by the
Company in respect of Director’s liabilities arising from the legal action
that may be taken against the Directors in relation to corporate activities.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, Board meetings and a general
meeting of the Company were held and the composition of the Board and
the attendance of the Directors at these meetings are as follows:

Members
24—}
Executive Directors HITEF
Wu Kebo (Chairman) hm (EE)
Wu Keyan (Note 1) e (Hrat1)
Mao Yimin EER
Li Pei Sen IR
Tan Boon Pin Simon FoR S
Independent non-executive Directors Y&/ I 7TEE
Leung Man Kit REG
Huang Shao-Hua George E=AOE
Wong Sze Wing B

Note:

1. Ms. Wu Keyan is the sister of Mr. Wu Kebo.
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Board Meetings
Attended/Eligible

General Meeting
Attended/Eligible
to Attend
BHEAERK
HERRAS

to Attend
BHEEER
HEEESER

8/11 11
8/11 171
11/11 171
10/11 0/1
11/11 ”n
IRVANI 171
9/11 171
11/11 1”7
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At least 14 days' prior notice to the date of the meeting of the Board was
given to all Directors and an agenda together with Board papers and
materials were sent to all Directors no less than three days before the date
of the Board meeting. All Directors were given opportunity to include in
the agenda any other matters that they would like to discuss in the
meeting. The Board committee also adopted and followed the foregoing
procedures for the Board committee meetings. All Directors and Board
committee members were urged to attend the Board meeting and the
Board committee meeting in person. If any Director or Board committee
member was unable to attend any such meeting in person, participation
through electronic means had been arranged and made available to such
Director and Board committee member.

If a Director has a potential conflict of interest in a matter being considered
in the Board meeting, the Director having such potential interest in the
matter shall abstain from voting. Independent non-executive Directors
with no conflict of interest were present at such meeting to deal with such
conflict of interest issues.

The company secretary or the staff of the company secretarial department
of the Company prepared and kept detailed minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting and, within a reasonable time
after each meeting, the draft minutes were circulated to all Directors for
comment and the final and approved version of the minutes was sent to
all Directors for their records. The Board committee had also adopted and
followed the same practices and procedures as used in the Board
meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the total number of
independent non-executive Directors met the minimum number as
required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules.

The Board has received from each independent non-executive Director a
written confirmation of his/her independence and the Board considers all
of them to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

To the best knowledge of the Company, except for (i) Ms. Wu who is the
sister of Mr. Wu; (i) Mr. Li who is the associate chairman of Orange Sky
Entertainment Group (International) Holding Company Limited (a company
which is 80% owned by Mr. Wu) and the interests as set out in the
paragraphs headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures” and “Substantial
Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares” in the “Report of the Directors” in this annual
report, there is no other financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship among members of the Board.

EETSSRRESeeRANIIATRRESRYD
TNAEREA TRESFeeRASIIRL=A
MEEESEREIRERNSENHERER - 222
EHIRZEANAEBERNEZ LilmzENE
E EELEBeNKARSANLAESEEZESY
BrRF o REEENEESLZESNEABRSLE
E%ﬁ&§$§E@@% AMNEEREELES
E%* ERBLRZEEE ZSESLEEZE
EXENBRERECEFHR2EHEE -

HESHEEEGHE L TwmoERAEENDER
WFE@%Eﬁ@Eﬂm2§$£M§&m e
FEamIENET R BIIFNTER  REZ
EMHEREA -

AARZARMELARMERETEERERE
FErEfFgea REFRERRA FHEEERL
B YREBREERIABKEANEEESHERH
BRLETR UHESRHEER M2EESEY
BHR LA R E Z RN RS - EEER
BeTCRAMIREEESRRAZHERTRL
B

ECT-ZF+ A=+ ALFE  BUFEHR
TERLBTE LTRAEINOMGEREZHE T
@°

EES RSB UNTESTERRE 2B S
M EOER EEERE RBRELMHRAE313
1 2REBEIERTESHBEIAL -

BARBRM  BRORLZLAREEZIRIE (i)
FRERMEEER80% KRIENAFBRERRE
(EE)BERARAZBMAEERIAFRIEETTWS
NIEEREZTHRAEBRE, - HERD S ERE
Bz Em SRR ] R EBREREREMA LR &
MR ZEERRR ] SBMAIBESN BF
BREMALBEFNS - X5 REIEMBER B
SRR

BAEARRE (KE)BRAE £ 2013

27




Corporate Governance Report
EREREE

In case there is any newly appointed Director, he/she will be provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/
her responsibilities under the Listing Rules, the other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements.

All the Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their acknowledge and skills. The
Company arranged in-house training for the Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2013. Mr. Leung, Mr. Huang and Ms. Wong received
briefings on updates of accounting standards from the auditors of the
Company at the audit committee meetings. All the Directors, namely Mr.
Wu, Mr. Mao, Mr. Li, Mr. Tan, Ms. Wu, Mr. Leung, Mr. Huang and Ms.
Wong, were provided with reading materials on corporate governance. All
Directors have provided the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the CG Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company adopted a board
diversity policy to build and maintain the Board with a diversity of the
Directors, in terms of gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skill and/or other qualities as may be considered
important by the nomination committee of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Wu, is responsible for providing leadership
of the Board and ensuring all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at the Board meeting. In addition, he is charged with the duty to
ensure that the Directors receive in timely manner adequate, complete and
reliable information in relation to the Group's affairs. The Chairman also
encourages the Directors to actively participate in and to make a full
contribution to the Board so that the Board functions effectively and acts
in the best interest of the Company.

The CEO, Mr. Mao, has been focusing on strategic planning and
assessment of mergers and acquisitions opportunities for the Company.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
between the Chairman and the CEO of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term but are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every three
years at the annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws, accomplishing the
same purpose as being appointed for a specific term. At the Board
meeting and Board committee meeting where constructive views and
comments of the non-executive Directors are given, the non-executive
Directors provide independent judgment on the issues relating to the
strategy, performance, conflict of interest and management process.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Kwan Lai has been appointed as the company secretary
("Company Secretary”) of the Company with effect from 17 June 2013.
The Company Secretary needs to support the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that Board's policy and procedures
are followed. The Company Secretary should report to the Chairman of
Board or the CEO on all related matters. For the year ended 31 December
2013, the Company Secretary confirmed that she had taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established an audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) on 9 October 1998 and formulated its written terms of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, which
have been uploaded on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. As at 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee’s members
comprised three independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. Leung
(who also acts as the Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Huang and
Ms. Wong.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, two Audit Committee
meetings were held and the individual attendance of the members of the
Audit Committee is set out as follows:

Members

KB

Leung Man Kit (Chairman) RRGE(EE)
Huang Shao-Hua George wHAE

Wong Sze Wing =T

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s financial control, internal control (including
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company'’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget) and risk management as delegated by the
Board, and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and engagement of the external auditors for audit and non-audit services.
The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee reviewed
the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and discussed
and reviewed financial reporting matters including the interim and audited
financial statements. In addition, the Audit Committee also reviewed the
engagement of the external auditors and the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control and risk management systems and
made recommendations to the Board. There was no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment or resignation of the external auditors.
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Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the audit committee of an issuer
must comprise a minimum of three members, comprising non-executive
directors only, and at least one of them is an independent non-executive
Director with appropriate qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
Our Directors confirm that we have complied with such requirements
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 8 October 2004 and has formulated its
written terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code, which have
been uploaded on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one executive Director,
being Mr. Wu, and two independent non-executive Directors, being Mr.
Leung and Ms. Wong (who also acts as the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee). The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration packages of all the Directors and senior
management of the Company according to its terms of reference,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for the loss or termination of their
office or appointment. The remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Company is determined by reference to factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and senior management, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance based
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is required to consult the Chairman of the
Board regarding the remuneration of the executive Directors, and
members of the Remuneration Committee have access to professional
advice on remuneration of executive Directors, if considered necessary.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31
December 2013 to review and make recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration package of individual executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee also reviewed and approved the terms of service
contracts of the executive Directors. The composition of the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2013 and the attendance
of the members of the Remuneration Committee to the meetings of the
Remuneration Committee are as follows:

Members

K&

Wong Sze Wing (Chairman) HHAE(EE)
Wu Kebo R

Leung Man Kit BRMEE

Details of emoluments of each Director and members of senior
management (which includes the executive Directors only) are set out in
note 8 to the financial statements on page 102 of this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 26 March 2012 and has formulated its
written terms of reference in accordance with the CG code, which have
been uploaded on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The Nomination Committee currently comprises one executive Director,
being Mr. Wu (who also acts as the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and two independent non-executive Directors, being Ms.
Wong and Mr. Leung. The principal responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying individuals qualified to become Board members,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the selection,
appointment or re-appointment of individuals nominated for directorships,
in particular the Chairman of the Board and the chief executive. The
Nomination Committee, in making such selection and recommendation,
will take into account factors such as professional qualification, experience,
academic background, etc.

The members of the Nomination Committee have access to independent
professional advice on the nomination of executive Directors, if considered
necessary.
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The Board adopted a board diversity policy on 28 August 2013 to enhance
quality of its performance. The Nomination committee is responsible for
reviewing and assessing the diversity at the Board level for and on behalf
of the Board in term of (including but not limited to) gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and such other
qualities as may be considered important by the Nomination Committee
from time to time. In identifying suitable candidates for appointment to
the Board, the Nomination Committee considers candidates on merit
against objective criteria and also the benefits of diversity on the Board. In
reviewing the Board composition, the Committee considers the benefits of
all aspects of diversity including, but not limited to, those described above,
in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of skills, experience
and diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this report, it is noted that 2 out of 8 Directors,
representing 25%, are female. The Directors’ ages are widely spread
between 35 and 66. Regarding the educational and professional
background, 2 out of the 8 Directors have relevant industry experience
and the Board members have accounting, finance, telecommunication and
general business knowledge. It is therefore believed that the Board has
achieved diversity in terms of gender, age, educational and professional
background.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31
December 2013 to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board; to consider and recommend to the Board the re-election of the
Directors; and to review the annual confirmation of independence
submitted by the independent non-executive Directors.

Members

RE

Wu Kebo (Chairman) h7R(FE)
Leung Man Kit RRG

Wong Sze Wing =5

AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the fees paid/payable to the
Group's auditors, Messrs. KPMG, are set out as follows:

Services Rendered

FriR SARR %

Audit Services
Non-audit services
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BERZ KR -

REZEERBE_ZT—=F+-A=+—BHItF
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Meetings Attended/
Eligible to Attend
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”n
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Fee Paid/Payable
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RAERRLE (RE)BRLR F8H 2013

33




Corporate Governance Report
EREREE

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare the financial
statements in each financial year with support from the finance
department of the Company and to ensure that the relevant accounting
policies are observed and the accounting standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants are complied with in the
preparation of such financial statements and to report the financial affairs
of the Company in a true and fair manner.

The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 64 to 66 of this annual
report.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system with the aim at (i) safeguarding the Group's assets
against unauthorised use or disposition; (ii) maintaining proper accounting
records; and (iii) ensuring compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. The internal control system of the Group comprises a well-
established organisation structure and comprehensive policies and
standards. The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management function for the year ended 31 December 2013, where some
findings have been identified and reported to the Board. There is no
material internal control deficiency that may affect the shareholders of the
Company which has come to the attention of the Audit Committee or the
Board. The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has complied
with code provisions C.2.1 and C.2.2 on internal controls as set out in the
CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company can deposit a written request (stating the objects of the meeting
and signed by the shareholders concerned) to convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM") for the transaction of any business specified in
the written request at the principal place of business of the Company for
the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary. If the Directors do
not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the request (after being
verified to be valid) proceed to convene an EGM, the shareholders
concerned, or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may by themselves convene an EGM, but any
EGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the date of the deposit of the request.

Shareholders, representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of the Company or not less than 100 shareholders as at the date of
deposit of the requisition, can by written requisition request the Company
to (a) give to the shareholders of the Company notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be removed at the next
annual general meeting of the Company; and (b) circulate to the
shareholders a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to
the matters referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at any general meeting. If the requisition requires a notice of a
resolution, it must be deposited at the principal place of business of the
Company not less than 6 weeks before the date of the annual general
meeting. In the case of any other requisition, the written requisition must
be deposited at the principal place of business of the Company not less
than 1 week before the date of the general meeting.

If a shareholder of the Company, who is duly qualified to attend and vote
at the general meetings of the Company, intends to propose a person
other than a Director for election as a Director at any general meeting, the
shareholder concerned shall lodge with the principal place of business of
the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary (i) a written
notice of his/her intention to propose that person for election as a Director
at the general meeting; and (i) a notice in writing by that person of his/her
willingness to be elected together with the necessary information within
the period commencing no earlier than seven days after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting and ending no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person
for election as a Director are available on the Company’s website.

The shareholders of the Company should send their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor
Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong.

The shareholders of the Company may send their other enquiries to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary or Company's
Corporate Communication Department at the principal place of business
of the Company situated at 24/F, AXA Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong or via email address: ir@goldenharvest.com.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a policy of disclosing clear and relevant
information to the shareholders of the Company in a timely manner. The
general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between shareholders of the Company and the Directors. The Directors
and the external auditor will attend the annual general meetings. The
Directors will answer questions raised by the shareholders on the
performance of the Group.

Review of the general meeting proceedings is carried out by the Board
from time to time so as to ensure that the Company has followed the best
corporate governance practices. Notice of the general meeting together
with the circular setting out details of each of the proposed resolutions
(including procedures for demanding a poll where required under the CG
Code), voting procedures and other relevant information are delivered to
all the shareholders of the Company with sufficient notice as required
under the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws of the Company before the date
appointed for the general meeting. At the commencement of the general
meeting, procedures for demanding (where required) and conducting a
poll are explained by the chairman of the meeting to the shareholders of
the Company and the votes cast are properly counted and recorded by the
scrutineer appointed by the Company. Poll results of the general meeting
are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on
the day of the general meeting.

The Company'’s website (http://mwww.osgh.com.hk) also contains an “Investor
Relations” section which enables the Company’s shareholders to have timely
access to the Company'’s press release, financial reports, announcements and
circulars.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there has been no change in the
Company’s memorandum of association and the Bye-laws. The Company's
memorandum of association and the Bye-laws are available on the Company's
website (http://mwww.osgh.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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The Group continues to strive to build long-term sustainability within its
operations and the communities in which it operates.

In 2013, the focus areas of the Company’s environmental, social and
governance report included working conditions, satisfying customers’
aspirations and community involvement.

Highlights of our focus areas are shared below.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Shareholders
The Group is pledged to maintain communication with its shareholders
and the investment community through various channels.

The annual general meeting sets an effective platform to allow
shareholders and the Directors to discuss and decide on important affairs
of the Company. Shareholders are encouraged to participate in the
meeting either in person or through proxies to attend and vote at the
meeting.

The financial reports of the Group act as a principal channel for the
shareholders and the investment community to understand the Group's
business performance and future developments. The shareholders may
make reference to the financial reports in making their investment
decisions.

During the year under review, physical meetings and conference calls were
held frequently with the investor community which included analysts, fund
managers and other investors, to keep them abreast of the operations and
development trends of the Group, subject to compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations. The Group also participated in the
corporate day of an investment bank to meet institutional investors from
different regions, which allowed interactive discussions on the Group's
operations among the management and investment community.

The Company's website contains an investor relations section which offers
timely access to the Company'’s press releases, announcements, financial
highlights and other business information. The Company has designated
executives to maintain regular dialogue with the investors via an email
account (ir@goldenharvest.com).

The Company established a shareholder communication policy to promote
effective communication with its shareholders. The shareholder
communication policy is available on the Company’'s website
(http://www.osgh.com.hk).
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Customers

The Group operates in an extremely competitive cinema entertainment
industry. The Group has not only designated websites, such as
http://www.goldenharvest.com for GH cinemas in Hong Kong and
http://www.osghcinemas.com for OSGH cinemas in PRC, but also uses social
networking tools, such as Facebook (http:/Awww.facebook.com/ghcinemas)
and Weibo (http://weibo.com/osgh) to stay closely connected with our
audiences to provide the latest news of “on show” and “coming soon”
movies as well as ticketing information. In order to save audiences’ time
for purchasing movie tickets at box offices, the Group has provided online
and mobile ticketing service. Our audiences can also order snacks and
redeem them by showing their mobile phones’ order records within two
weeks after the purchases.

Employees

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has 1,426 full-time employees. Our
people are core to our success and the implementation of our strategies.
The Group is committed to providing staff training and development
programmes designated to help its employees to enhance their knowledge
and skills.

WORKPLACE QUALITY

We are dedicated to fostering an environment that encourages staff
development and advancement and creating a workplace where
employees’ efforts are recognised and rewarded.

Working conditions

The Group has adopted a “five-day week” to promote a healthy work-life
balance. The Company also understands the needs of its employees and
strives to make them feel proud to be part of the Group. For instance, its
employees have been offered staff free ticket passes to watch movies.

In order to recognise the hard work and achievements of employees, the
performance of each the Group’s employees is reviewed annually and
many different ways of rewards are granted as recognition and motivation.
As part of the performance management system, key performance
indicators are adopted to ensure that the requisite directions and standards
are set and met. The Group’s performance-based remuneration system
involves competitive salaries, commissions, discretionary bonuses, share
options and fringe benefits to provide a comprehensive compensation
package.

Development and training

The Company endeavours to foster a culture of continuous learning and
talent development. Employees have been encouraged to take on-the-job
training with the aim to enrich their work-related skills and knowledge and
also to enhance their job satisfaction. Besides, the Company has put in
place education subsidies and examination leave for employees seeking to
enrich their work-related knowledge.

Health and safety

The Group is committed to providing a safe, effective and congenial work
environment for all its employees. In order to comply with the labour
standards and laws, guidelines and notices are provided to enhance the
knowledge of its employees in occupational safety and health.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

Satisfying customers’ aspirations

Serving the needs of our patrons to let them have a wonderful viewing
experience in our cinemas is our top priority. This is done through our
selection of a wide variety of high quality movies for our patrons. There
were 227 movies exhibited in our cinemas in Hong Kong in the year 2013.

The Group always endeavours not only to provide high quality customer
services but also to deliver superior quality audio and video experience to
our patrons by equipping advanced technologies, such as Motion Chair
D-Box and IMAX® screen in our cinemas. Apart from providing traditional
motion pictures to our audiences, the Group also intended to provide a
wider variety of contents and let them enjoy other high-end alternative
contents such as musical and sports events.

In order to improve and maintain high standards of customer services, the
Group has put in place a mystery shopper programme. The programme
not only helps us provide high quality services to audiences, but also lets
us know whether there is any room for improvement.

Consumer Protection

Protecting our audiences’ privacy is one of the top priorities of our
employees as we have developed an online purchase system for movie
tickets and membership system on our website. To this end, we have
implemented strict data protection mechanisms to secure the
confidentiality of our customers’ data. In addition to the Company’s policy
being set out in employee handbook, the Company has periodically
reminded its frontline employees of the importance of personal data
protection.

Anti-corruption

The Group takes its anti-corruption responsibilities very seriously. The
Group has ongoing review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system across the Group.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group strives to support the
community by participating in different charitable activities. Throughout
the year 2013, the Company has donated money to charities as well as
encouraged its employees to participate in community services. For
instance, the Company sponsored its employees to participate in the ORBIS
Moonwalkers in November 2013 for collecting donations to support the
fight against global blindness. In order to support and promote Feeding
Hong Kong’s mission of “feeding people in Hong Kong who would
otherwise go hungry”, the Group arranged its employees to participate in
a “Bread Run” event organised by Feeding Hong Kong in December 2013.
We hope that our employees, through their participation in the event, can
nurture an increased awareness of poverty and food insecurity in Hong
Kong and reduce food waste to promote environmental sustainability.
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We recognise that children are the future of society. We also believe that
viewing good children’s films is not simply recreational but may also have
a positive influence on children and help establish a positive view. The
Group invited about 300 pupils from a kindergarten to enjoy a children
movie at GH Whampoa, Hong Kong in February 2013. We also arranged
three activities to invite several hundred less fortunate children and
children with autism spectrum disorder to view children movies at OSGH
Cinemas Yinchuan, PRC in January, May and December 2013. To some of
those children, it was their first time viewing 3D movies. We also offered
free popcorns and coke to children before viewing the movies.

Going forward, the Group will continue to expand its activities and services
to the community.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

To promote environmental awareness, we have been committed to
introducing green practices in our internal operations in the Hong Kong
office. The green practices adopted included saving energy in the office,
recycling office resources, minimising the use of paper, encouraging
electronic communications and smart use of the Company’s vehicles.

Considering the environmental protection an important issue, our Group
distributes 3D glasses to audiences for viewing 3D movies and encourages
those who have taken the glasses to return to our Group for reuse.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRES

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the report of the Directors and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company which is a leading
integrated film entertainment company in the markets where the principal
activities of the Group consist of worldwide film and video distribution,
film exhibition, provision of advertising and consultancy services in Hong
Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and Singapore, and films and television
programmes production in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2013 are set
out in the financial statements on pages 67 to 135.

The Directors did not declare any interim dividend in year 2013.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 December 2013. Details of the Company’s share capital during
the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 28(a) to the
financial statements.

Save for the share options as set out below and as set out in note 28(a)(i)
to the financial statements, the Company had no outstanding convertible
securities, warrants or other similar rights as at 31 December 2013.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws
or the company laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MBRERRE

“#Twelve ~ *Eighteen
“Year "Year *Year *Year months months
ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended31 ended31  ended 31
December  December  December  December December  December
‘BE "Bz *BE *BE tTHE BE
+=A +=A +=A +=A +=A +=A
Er=F =+—H =—E Eg=E Z—B Z—E
LEE EE HFE EEE E+=@A L+AEAR
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2009
“B-=f —T-—-F —T——F ZT-TF _TTNF —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FHET FET
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited)  (Audited)
(&%) (&%) (&%) (KFk) (REEFR) %)
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (Z5))
Consolidated income statement G4 WER
Turnover gxE 929,334 797,912 1,369,562 1,077,533 809,975 1,230,904
Profit before taxation B BLER 116,407 86,700 117,434 94,898 36,228 115,394
Income tax Fr{# (1,230) 9,527 (22,563) (22,511) (13,586) (20,484)
Profit for the period/year from BEREER
continuing operations R FEER 115,177 96,227 94,871 72,387 22,642 94,910
Profit for the period/year from BRIEBEEB
discontinued operation AR FERF - - - - - 1,198
Profit for the period/year A EEEF 115,177 96,227 94,871 72,387 22,642 96,108
Attributable to: PAT AL REL
— Equity holders of the Company — ARAIREFEA 114,986 95,987 95,943 70,823 22,172 95,542
— Non-controlling interests — R 191 240 (1,072) 1,564 470 566
115,177 96,227 94,871 72,387 22,642 96,108
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION R EREE

As at 31 December

"2013 "2012 *2010 *2009
‘ZE-=f T C-F = *TR-TFE ZTTNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEr F&r FET
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audiited) (Audited)
(BE#%) (45 %F1%) (45 %F1%) (45 %F1%) (45 %F1%)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
=27)) (Z3l) (&%)
Consolidated statement GBEBERRE
of financial position
Fixed assets EFEE 1,494,544 1,043,912 848,628 681,465 395,055
Interests in joint ventures REEDE S 344,619 371,132 299,152 - -
Interests in associates REEE AR 2 = 13,713 6,876 - - -
Loan to a joint venture partner BT —RAERE
ZER - - - - 5,357
Available-for-sale equity securities A it H & AR E % - - - 246,083 1,500
Other receivable, deposits and Hip s -« e Rk
prepayments B8 210,662 144,232 88,018 94,244 61,806
Club memberships o8 2,490 2,490 2,490 2,490 2,490
Trademark mE 79,785 79,785 79,785 79,785 79,421
Goodwill e 73,658 73,658 73,658 73,658 28,538
Deferred tax assets ERERIBEEE 29,512 22,235 6,947 3,095 420
Non-current portion of pledged BIRIPRITERZ
bank deposits JERNEREE 46,905 46,850 21,845 29,476 25,038
Current assets MEBEE 873,372 862,032 883,988 667,558 731,960
Total assets EEGE 3,169,260 2,653,202 2,304,511 1,877,854 1,331,585
Current liabilities mEBE 761,969 662,140 399,324 388,049 290,636
Non-current portion of bank loans #8717 & 5%~ JE BN EA
EEiba 611,576 325,354 376,345 82,400 62,732
Non-current portion of AR E R 2 JERNHER
convertible notes B - - - 6,662 6,150
Non-current portion of obligations EEREBHE 2
under finance lease FERNERED 7 18,045 12,356 - - -
Amount due to a jointly JER — £ [RHE )
controlled entity NGIE S - - - - 5,357
Deposits received Bline - - - 5,318 4,887
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIBEEE 12,338 12,112 8,002 19,623 13,868
Total liabilities BERE 1,403,928 1,011,962 783,671 502,052 383,630
Net assets BEFE 1,765,332 1,641,240 1,520,840 1,375,802 947,955
Non-controlling interests FEERE R 10,661 7,147 6,889 11,554 1,881

Note: Upon adoption of HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements, in 2013, the Group has changed its accounting policy with respect to its

interests in joint arrangements from the proportionate consolidation method to the equity method.

W N —E-ZERABEBVHEREENE R AR AREREEHEENE A R 2 a2 GRTIRE - ARBLY

BHARUS R A ©

>

R -
SRR LL LA BE% -

#=# oy %

Using the equity method.

Using the proportionate consolidation method.

These figures are presented for comparison purposes.
FZEHF IR RBRME7 -

RAERRLE (RE)BRLR F8H 2013
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 28(b) to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company'’s reserves available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie, representing the retained profits,
amounted to HK$417,682,000 (2012: HK$319,283,000). In addition, the
Company’s share premium account, contributed surplus and capital
redemption reserve of HK$664,835,000, HK$271,644,000 and
HK$8,833,000, respectively, as at 31 December 2013, may be distributed
to the shareholders of the Company in certain circumstances prescribed by
Section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to the
date of this report were:

Chairman & Executive Director
Wu Kebo

Executive Directors
Li Pei Sen

Mao Yimin

Tan Boon Pin Simon

Wu Keyan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Leung Man Kit

Huang Shao-Hua George

Wong Sze Wing

Pursuant to Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual
general meeting of the Company, one third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation. Pursuant to Bye-law 87(2) of the
Bye-laws of the Company, a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Accordingly, each of Mr. Tan Boon Pin Simon, Mr. Li Pei Sen and
Ms. Wong Sze Wing shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself or herself for re-election at
the annual general meeting.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company has entered into a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2013. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(i) Interests in shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued
share capital of the Company (the “Shares”),
underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company

Name of Director/

Chief Executive Number of
S /TETBAR Capacity Shares
#®E 54 ReGEE
Wu Kebo Interest of controlled 1 1,594,227,401 (L)
R corporations
XA ER
Beneficial owner 1 24,545,000 (L)
ERBEA
2 -
Wu Keyan Beneficial owner 2 -
h7d ERBEA
Li Pei Sen Beneficial owner 2 -
ESF ERHEA
Leung Man Kit Beneficial owner 2 -
RRE EREEA
Huang Shao-Hua George ~ Beneficial owner 2 -
B ERHAA
Tan Boon Pin Simon Beneficial owner 2 -
53¢ ERMAA
* These percentages are computed based on the total number of Shares

in issue (i.e. 2,679,819,248 Shares) as at 31 December 2013.

EERTETHRASRRG - HHE
ROBEEE 2 ERERKE

RZE—=F+_A=+—H KARFRIZEERE
BITRABRARQ RS E A AR (X RE?

MEAEIGOI([FHREEERD ) EXVER) Z &K -
ARG ERE  BEARRAREEFLEE
1EBIEXVIBEIS2EFE 2 S MATEEE - SiRE
LR AIATEIZEST A B e AR A A B R F 2 4
@mKRBI

() RERATSBITRATERMEE.0
ARG (RG] A2FZEHE
RAD R Rz s

* Approximate
percentage

of Shares and
underlying Shares
in the issued share

Total capital of the

number of Company

Shares and *RA R AR

Numberof  underlying Shares ~ BARAAF

underlying Shares RAR ERTRAR
HERAHE HERGEE AR

- 1,594,227,401 (L) 59.49%

- 24,545,000 (L) 0.92%

60,000,000 (L) 60,000,000 (L) 2.24%
700,000 (L) 700,000 (L) 0.026%
200,000 (L) 200,000 (L) 0.007%
200,000 (L) 200,000 (L) 0.007%
200,000 (L) 200,000 (L) 0.007%
1,200,000 (L) 1,200,000 (L) 0.045%

* ZEHEAHTRER=F—=F+=AH
=+ —HE#TR7#E2(F12,679,819,248
RERS) et -
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Notes:

1. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu was deemed to be interested in a total
of 1,594,227,401 Shares, of which (i) 439,791,463 Shares were held
by Skyera International Limited (a company wholly-owned by Mr. Wu);
(ii) 408,715,990 Shares were held by Mainway Enterprises Limited (a
company wholly owned by Mr. Wu); (iii) 565,719,948 Shares were
held by Orange Sky Entertainment Group (International) Holding
Company Limited (a company which is 80% owned by Mr. Wu) and
(iv) 180,000,000 Shares were held by Cyber International Limited (a
company owned by an associate of Mr. Wu).

In addition, Mr. Wu was interested in 24,545,000 Shares as at 31
December 2013 which were beneficially held by him in his own name.

2. These underlying Shares represented the Shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of share options granted by the Company under
the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 28 November
2001 (the “2001 Share Option Scheme”).

Abbreviation:
“L"  stands for long position

(ii) Interests in shares of associated corporations
Mr. Wu was also the beneficial owner of the entire issued share
capital of Golden Harvest Film Enterprises Inc., which beneficially
held 114 million non-voting deferred shares of Orange Sky Golden
Harvest Entertainment Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and save for the disclosure referred to under
“Share Option Schemes” set out below and in note 28(a)(i) to the financial
statements on page 119 of this annual report, as at 31 December 2013,
none of the Directors and chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures”
above and “Share Option Schemes” below, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2013 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors, their respective spouses
or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

Wt -

1. RIEE A RE R - MAEREAEEEH
1,594,227,401 f& % 1 + & () 439,791,463 ik
R BmEEEEHESBH A ESkyera
International Limited 5 4 : (ii) 408,715,990 A% f&
19 BRS04 2 B A B2 7] Mainway Enterprises
Limited #54 : (i) 565,719,948 A% i% 7 1 1 2 4
5 80% BRI M)A Rl KIRGE & B (B IR ) 4%
%A R A F1#B M (v) 180,000,000 A% % 12 F f
S HE BB A B B89 22 B Cyber International
Limited #7

B BEENMAREFEER T —=F
+ZA=+—HBE=%A 24,545,000 &R H
W o

2. ZERBRO VEARTBRBERARRAN-Z
E-F+—-A-+N\BRBZBREE
(ZZFZ2—FREEETE ) R BREE
TTRIRPIREETTZ R

Ll 3EsrA

(i) MBCSEERG Z2ER
fh % 4 78 A& Golden Harvest Film Enterprises
Inc. 2MEBITRAZEREFA - MZ QA
ERFAALRRZENBARIE R RIRE
BIRARIN4BEBREREERELTRD -

B EXHEEE AR T X RAFIRE 188 AW MK
BaE28(a)() A [HE iRt 8l 2 WEEF RSN =
=+ -"A=t+—HB ARABZEEREENT
BABRAR R SRR EE (EH RER R
EIRGIZEXVED) 2 Bty - ARRIR Iy REREE P AU &
BEEEAARRABRIEES LG GRIIEXVESE
INKEFEEZERMATRE  REBEFETREHM
BARBEE T2 SRR -

EERERDNEER 2ER

BREXTEEREBZTHRASRRND « HERNO X
EHEE 2w Rk R | AR T X [HEAE S 56
BEEIN ARBREERAMNBRARARBEE-Z
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LRI B AR RERMEMEABEE 2 KD HE
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

0]

2001 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the 2001 Share Option Scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations, which
became effective on 28 November 2001. Eligible participants of the
2001 Share Option Scheme include the Directors and other
employees of the Group, shareholders of the Company, suppliers of
goods or services to the Group and customers of the Group.

Each grant of the share options to the Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their associates,
must be approved by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding independent non-executive Director who is the grantee
of the share option). In addition, any grant of share options to a
substantial shareholder of the Company or an independent non-
executive Director, or any of their respective associates which would
result in the Shares issued or to be issued upon exercise of options
already granted and to be granted under the 2001 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (if
any) (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
such person representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in
issue and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Shares at each date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period up to and including the date of the grant, shall be
subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting with voting to be taken by way of a poll.

The offer in relation to a grant of share options under the 2001
Share Option Scheme must be accepted within 30 days inclusive of,
and from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the Directors, which may
not exceed 10 years commencing on such date on or after the date
of grant as the Directors may determine in granting the share
options (which in any event must be prior to the close of business
on 30 October 2011) and ending on such date as the Directors may
determine in granting the share options. Save as determined by the
Directors and provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant share
option, there is no general requirement that a share option must be
held for any minimum period before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
Directors, provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Shares on the date of the offer; and (ii) the
average closing price of the Shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer, provided that the price
shall in no event be less than the nominal amount of one Share.
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(ii)

The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the 2001 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company (if any) must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at 28 November
2001. This limit was refreshed by the shareholders of the Company
in the annual general meeting of the Company held on 10
December 2007 in accordance with the provisions of the Listing
Rules. In addition, the maximum number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options granted to each eligible
participant under the 2001 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (if any) (including both
exercised and outstanding options) within any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Any
further grant of share options in excess of such limit (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant of such share option
shall be separately approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting with such participant and his associates abstaining
from voting.

As at the date of this report, options entitling the holders thereof to
subscribe for an aggregate of 63,100,000 Shares (representing
approximately 2.35% of Shares in issue (i.e. 2,679,819,248 Shares)
as at the date of this report) remain outstanding under the 2001
Share Option Scheme. The 2001 Share Option Scheme was
terminated with effect from 11 November 2009 when the new
share options scheme adopted by the Company on 11 November
2009 (the “2009 Share Option Scheme”) became unconditional.
Notwithstanding the termination of the 2001 Share Option Scheme,
the outstanding options granted under the 2001 Share Option
Scheme remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the grant thereof.

Share options granted under the 2001 Share Option Scheme do not
confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at the
shareholders’ meetings.

2009 Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted the 2009 Share Option Scheme for the
purpose to enable the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
growth of the Group and to provide the Group with a more flexible
means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits
to the eligible participants. Eligible participants of the 2009 Share
Option Scheme include the Directors and other employees of the
Group, consultants or advisers, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
service providers, agents, customers and business partners of the
Group. The 2009 Share Option Scheme became effective on 11
November 2009 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from that date.

(ii)
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Each grant of the share options to a connected person of the
Company, or any of their associates, must be approved by all of the
independent non-executive Directors (excluding the independent
non-executive Director who is the grantee of the option). In
addition, any grant of the share options to a substantial shareholder
of the Company or an independent non-executive Director, or any
of their respective associates which would result in the Shares issued
or to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to
be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
to such person representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares
in issue on the date of the offer and with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the Shares at the date of each grant) in
excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period up to and
including the date of the grant, shall be subject to approval of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting with voting to be
taken by way of a poll.

The offer in relation to a grant of share options under the 2009
Share Option Scheme shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participant concerned for such period as determined by the
Board, which period shall not be more than 30 days from the day of
the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Directors, the expiry date of such period not to
exceed 10 years from the date of the offer. Save as determined by
the Directors and provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant
share option, there is no general requirement that a share option
must be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised.

The price per Share at which a grantee may subscribe for Shares on
the exercise of a share option is determinable by the Directors,
provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of grant of the share option; (ii) the
average closing price per Share as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share.

The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company (if any) must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at 11 November
2009, being the date of adoption of the 2009 Share Option
Scheme. This limit was last refreshed by the shareholders of the
Company in the annual general meeting of the Company held on
15 May 2012 in accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules
so that the maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme and other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 268,120,424 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in
issue as at the date of passing the relevant resolution on 15 May
2012. In addition, the maximum number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised and outstanding options under
the 2009 Share Option Scheme) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Any further grant of share
options in excess of such limit (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant of such share option shall be separately approved
by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting with such
participant and his associates abstaining from voting.
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As at the date of this report, options entitling the holders to ARG BH > RiIE-TTNFERESS
subscribe for an aggregate of 268,120,424 Shares (representing 0 HiE A AER R R A £ 268,120,424 i%
approximately 10.01% of Shares in issue (i.e. 2,679,819,248 BH(ERABREBBREBTRS
Shares) as at the date of this report) are available for issue under the 2,679,819,248 BRF& 10 #710.01% ) 2 & A% 4% m]
2009 Share Option Scheme. fHrEEgT -

Share options granted or to be granted under the 2009 Share BE_ZTAFEREFIRESIBREZ
Option Scheme do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or BBAEYEE TR EARRKBESREREKR
to vote at the shareholders’ meetings. g EIRE R -

Number of
share Lapsed Closing price Number of
options during the per Share  share options
outstanding year ended immediately outstanding
asat 31 December before as at
1 January 2013 the date 31 December
Exercise 2013 REZE of grant of

Name or price per R-B-=F —E-= share option
category of Date of grant Share -A-8 T=f FERRE
participant of share option BR  Exercise period HALTEZ Sqr=[lile BREAAZ
SRERLAER BRERLBE 8 ! BREHA FEAX SRUHE

(Note a)
)

Director
%
Huang Shao-Hua 23 September 2009 0453 23 September 2009 200,000 - 0.451 200,000
George ZETNE t0 22 September 2014
BOE NA=1+=A “ITNENAZTZRE
“E-MEAACTCA
Wu Kebo 23 September 2009 0453 23 September 2009 60,000,000 - 0.451 60,000,000
iy —TTHE t0 22 September 2014
AAZT=AR “EEAFNAZTZEZE
“E-MEAAZTCA
Wu Keyan 23 September 2009 0.453 23 September 2009 700,000 - 0.451 700,000
JigzE=3 ZIThE to 22 September 2014
NE=t+=8 “ZENFAACTZRE
—Z-mFAA=+ZR
Li Pei Sen 23 September 2009 0453 23 September 2009 200,000 - 0.451 200,000
FER —EENEF 10 22 September 2014
NE=t+=A8 “TTNFNAZTZRE
“E-MEAA-TCA
Leung Man Kit 23 September 2009 0453 23 September 2009 200,000 - 0.451 200,000
RRE ZEENF t0 22 September 2014
NA=t+=A “ERNFAAZTZRE
“E-MEAAZTCA
Tan Boon Pin Simon 23 September 2009 0453 23 September 2009 1,200,000 - 0451 1,200,000
B ZTENE t0 22 September 2014
AA=T=A “ZENFNAZTZRE
“E-MEAAZTCA
Other participants
AfppaE
In aggregate 23 September 2009 0453 23 September 2009 1,050,000 450,000 0451 600,000
fhzt ZTENE t0 22 September 2014
AA=T=A “ZZNFNAZTZRE
“E-MEAAZTCA
63,550,000 450,000 63,100,000
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Notes:

(a) Being the weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately
before the dates on which the share options were granted or
exercised, as applicable.

(b) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until
the commencement of the exercise period.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had total outstanding share
options entitling the holders thereof to subscribe for 63,100,000
Shares under the 2001 Share Option Scheme and nil Shares under
the 2009 Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of these
outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 63,100,000
additional Shares, representing approximately 2.35% of the Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2013, and additional share capital of
HK$6,310,000 and share premium account of approximately
HK$22,274,300 (before issue expenses).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the disclosure under the headings “Connected Transactions”
and “Continuing Connected Transactions” below and save as detailed in
note 32 to the financial statements on page 131 of this annual report,
none of the Directors had any material interests, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party during or at the end of the year ended 31
December 2013.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s purchases from its
largest supplier and its five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
23% and 59%, respectively, of the Group's total purchases. J#& IR HE
Kbt AR A F] (Shenzhen City Shenying Orange Sky Cinemas Circuit
Company Limited), being 49% indirectly owned by Mr. Wu, was the
largest supplier of the Group during the year.

The Group's sales to its largest customer and its five largest customers
accounted for approximately 4% and 10%, respectively, of the Group's
total sales during the same period. X EFES (RY) BRAA
(Panasia Cinemedia (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd) and Panasia Cinema Advertising
Limited, both of which are 80% indirectly owned by Mr. Wu, were two of
the top five customers of the Group during the year.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or any of its associates, or
any of the shareholders of the Company (which to the best knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any interest in the Group's five largest customers and/or suppliers.

(@ NEERZSEREERLITERBEME
SRE) B AT Z Bt i PR E

(b) HEREZHBBHBRERLEHRTET
BRI -

RZZE—Z=ZF+-_A=+—8 AQXABHR
FEFAEAEFNAURE ST —FHERET
BIRE A ££63,100,000 B H KIRE—-ZT=
NFEBRETZRETRIRG 2 M RITEERE
- RIBEARRZEBEARE  2HET
{8k T 7 BB AR AT 2B SR BEAHNEE1T63,100,000
D ((ER—FE—=F+=-A=+—HE%
TR #92.35%) + M EESMNE AR Z<6,310,000
BT RN S (BER#) 22,274,300 8 7T (Rt
TTEMA) °

EENEN 2R

BRTIXTHERS | RIFHERERS | SEMEE
ERAFEIRF 200 B MR TEI2PTFF AL ES
REEMBEAEBE 2 —=F T -_A=1T—HILF
EAREE B RARRSKEERNEAR2EI] L
ZEAERANTERIMEREAEAES -

FTERFREER

BHE_Z-—=F+-"A=+—RHILFE FA5EHD
HEEAHEBIAAHEHREZBERD BINNG
AEBBIEERZ23% K%59% ° FR - BLELEH
BHER 49% i < AT ARFZERERERRAR
REBFAMER

RAH  AEERESEAREFPRAREFEHZIHE
EHAUNDINEREEBHERZ24% K% 10% ° F
W R EREER 80% a2 2 REZESOR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER IFEREREMATHRRERIEE
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS R#HZREZRAA
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2013, the following  FREZFH R-ET—=F+-_A=+—H ' &K
persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, had the A GRIEFE L R EEFIEXVIEIZ6EEFEZE
following interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as =2 FTaEE » THIA T (RATESKEETHAER
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section  LASN) AR D Sk ARREIR (D P IF A A TR SA R ¢
336 of Part XV of the SFO:

*Approximate
percentage of
Shares and
underlying Shares
in the issued
share capital of

Total number the Company
of Sharesand * R 13 K B 17

Number of Number of  underlying Shares RAARE 4T
Name of shareholder Capacity Shares  underlying Shares R 12 KRR R Frfh
RREZ /28 5 BB#E HERG#HE R A% BABAL
Wu Kebo Interest of controlled 1 1,594,227,401 (L) - 1,594,227,401 (L) 59.49%
R corporations
REEEER
Beneficial owner 1 24,545,000 (L) - 24,545,000 (L) 0.92%
EZHEA 6 60,000,000 (L) 60,000,000 (L) 2.24%
Skyera International Limited ~ Beneficial owner 2 439,791,463 (L) - 439,791,463 (L) 16.41%
("Skyera") EREAA
Mainway Enterprises Limited  Beneficial owner 3 408,715,990 (L) - 408,715,990 (L) 15.25%
("Mainway") ERnEAA
Cyber International Limited ~ Beneficial owner 4 180,000,000 (L) - 180,000,000 (L) 6.72%
("Cyber") EREBA
Orange Sky Entertainment  Beneficial owner 5 565,719,948 (L) - 565,719,948 (L) 21.11%
Group (International) EZBEA
Holding Company Limited
("OSEG")

BAREEE (AR 2k
BRAR ( [&X])

* These percentages are computed based on the total number of Shares in ~ * ZEASHTIREAXARGIR=-_F—=ZF+=-A4

issue (i.e. 2,679,819,248 Shares) as at 31 December 2013. =+ —HBE #1742 (F12,679,819,248 R 17)
iE -
Notes: Bt
(1) By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu was deemed to have interest in a total of (1)  RIEFHFRBEKEG  GEEWEABEEARAAFHK
1,594,227,401 Shares, of which (i) 439,791,463 Shares were held by Skyera; 1,594,227,401 & B& 15 + & # (i) 439,791,463 & fx 1n
(ii) 408,715,990 Shares were held by Mainway; (i) 565,719,948 Shares were FA Skyera$¥F & : (ii) 408,715,990 f% f% {5 F Mainway
held by OSEG; and (iv) 180,000,000 Shares were held by Cyber. 5 48  (iii) 565,719,948 I A R#F A + K(v)
180,000,000 A% A% 5 F Cyber £ 4 ©
In addition, Mr. Wu was interested in 24,545,000 Shares which were BN RS ETRAA & £ 2 B 5 5 24,545,000 A%
beneficially held by him in his own name. fRinHERS ©
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3)

@)

(5)

(6)

Skyera is a company wholly owned by Mr. Wu, who is also a director of
Skyera.

Mainway is a company wholly owned by Mr. Wu, who is also a director of
Mainway.

Cyber is a company owned by an associate of Mr. Wu.

OSEG (a company 80% owned by Mr. Wu) was interested in 565,719,948
Shares. Mr. Wu is a director of OSEG and Mr. Li Pei Sen is the associate
Chairman of OSEG.

These underlying Shares represented the Shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of share option granted by the Company under the 2001 Share
Option Scheme.

Abbreviation:
“L" stands for long position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no other person had an
interest or a short position in Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group conducted the
following transactions which constituted connected transactions for the
Company under the Listing Rules:

(a) Special Agreement on Purchase of Tickets

On 6 November 2013, a master advertising agreement (the “Master
Advertising Agreement”) entered into between 1& X 52 R & (#
)EBRAA] (Orange Sky Golden Harvest Cinemas (China) Co. Ltd.)
(“OSGH (China)"), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and jZ B2 # & & & OR Y1) BBR 2 7 (transliterated as
Panasia Cinemedia (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd) (“Panasia Cinemedia”),
pursuant to which Panasia Cinemedia shall purchase movie tickets
from OSGH (China) with total face value of RMB2,000,000 and pay
the said RMB2,000,000 to OSGH (China) on or before 31 December
2013. Panasia Cinemedia purchased the movie tickets for
distribution to its existing and potential customers for the purpose
of market promotion.

Panasia Cinemedia is a wholly owned subsidiary of OSEG, a
company in which 80% equity interest is in turn held by Mr. Wu
who is the chairman and an executive Director and the controlling
shareholder of the Company. OSEG is a substantial shareholder of
the Company. Panasia Cinemedia therefore is a connected person
of the Company by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Wu and
OSEG. Accordingly, the entering into of the Master Advertising
Agreement by the Company constitutes a connected transaction for
the Company under the Listing Rules.
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(2)  SkyeraBhEEZEHENAT] - I ASkyeraE = »

B ManwayB L EE2EREABH AR BN A

Mainway £ £ °
@) Cyber BEREFLAENBHEABAN AR ©

(5) SR 80% RIER R F)E KA 565,719,948
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HEEER -

(6) WEHEAEROEITEARARE-_TT—FHEEE
sHEIPTR R B W AT R BT Z IR AR o
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B S SOR R -

BEXS
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(b) Screen Advertising Agreement

On 16 December 2013, M Cinemas Company Limited ("M
Cinemas”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Panasia Cinema Advertising Limited (“PCA") entered into a
screen advertising agreement (the “Screen Adverting Agreement”)
in relation to the appointment of M Cinemas by PCA as the
exclusive exhibitor of screen advertisements for a specific brand and
product at the cinemas operated by the Group in Hong Kong for a
period of one month from 1 December 2013 to 31 December 2013
(both days inclusive), further to the exhibition of certain
advertisements for PCA at the cinemas operated by the Group in
Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore in May, June and July 2013.

PCA shall pay to M Cinemas a net sum equivalent to HK$6,350,000
on or before 14 January 2014 for the services of M Cinemas under
the Screen Advertising Agreement and for the previous exhibition
of advertisements for PCA at the cinemas operated by the Group in
Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore in May, June and July 2013.

PCA is a company in which 80% equity interest is indirectly owned
by Mr. Wu. PCA is therefore a connected person of the Company
by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Wu. The transaction
contemplated under the Screen Advertising Agreement constitutes
a connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has entered into
and engaged in the following transactions and arrangements with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company:

(a) Procurement of Screen Advertising and In-foyer
Advertising
Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 8
December 2010, by which the Company announced, among other
things, that the following continuing connected transactions were
entered into.

OSGH (China) and Panasia Cinemedia, entered into a screen
advertising agreement dated 30 March 2010 and a supplemental
agreement dated 31 December 2010 (collectively the “Shenzhen
Advertising Agreement”), whereby certain rights had been granted
by OSGH (China) to Panasia Cinemedia for procurement of the
screen advertising and in-foyer advertising at OSGH Cinemas
Shenzhen (F JIl #& X 38 K & ) (previously known as Golden
Harvest Shenzhen Cinema (5 K /& JIl & #)) operated by OSGH
(China) for a term from 1 April 2010 to 31 December 2013 at
annual fees for the first two years commencing from 1 April 2010
of RMB2,200,000 and RMB2,400,000 respectively and the annual
fees for the period commencing from 1 April 2012 and ending on
31 December 2013 to be subject to an increment of 10%.

(b) REESH=S
RZE—=F+=ZA+"8 AQalzHE
TEMBRABIZEHABRAR([EFH]) R
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VIREEERH((REESHED  AEH
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OSGH (China) and Panasia Cinemedia also entered into a master
screen advertising agreement dated 25 April 2010 and a
supplemental agreement dated 31 December 2010 (collectively the
“PRC Master Screen Advertising Agreement”), whereby certain
rights had been granted by OSGH (China) to Panasia Cinemedia for
procurement of the screen advertising at all cinemas (other than
OSGH Cinemas Shenzhen (IR EREZ40)) in the PRC operated
or to be operated by OSGH (China), its subsidiaries and/or affiliates
for the term of commencing on 1 May 2010 and expiring on 31
December 2013 at aggregate annual fees of approximately
RMB8,790,000 for the first year, which shall be subject to an
increment of 10% (or such other sum as specified in the PRC
Master Screen Advertising Agreement) after the first year and an
increment of 10% after the second year.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount
payable under the Shenzhen Advertising Agreement and the PRC
Master Screen Advertising Agreement amounted to RMB13,098,959,
which is within the annual cap of RMB33,000,000.

Under the Listing Rules, OSEG, being a substantial shareholder of
the Company, and its associates are connected persons of the
Company. As Panasia Cinemedia is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of OSEG, it is a connected person of the Company.

Cinema In-foyer Advertising Sales Agency Service
On 1 September 2011, OSGH (China) , an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Panasia Cinemedia, entered into a
cinema advertising sales agency agreement (the “Cinema
Advertising Sales Agency Agreement”) for a term from 1 September
2011 to 31 December 2013 for the provision of in-foyer advertising
sales agency services by Panasia Cinemedia to OSGH (China) at all
cinemas operated or to be operated by OSGH (China) in the PRC
(other than OSGH Cinemas Shenzhen (ZFIIIEXZ AR Y,) and the
cinema in Sanlitun, Beijing (3t R = E/H #E Cinemas)) (the
“Cinemas”). The advertising fees payable by the customers for the
in-foyer advertising at the Cinemas shall be shared between OSGH
(China) (as to 60%) and Panasia Cinemedia (as to 40%).

On 5 April 2012, OSGH (China) and Panasia Cinemedia entered into
a supplemental agreement to the Cinema Advertising Sales Agency
Agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) to amend certain
terms of the Cinema Advertising Sales Agency Agreement with
effect from 1 January 2012. Pursuant to the Supplemental
Agreement, the major amendments included that (i) OSGH (China)
shall engage Panasia Cinemedia on a non-exclusive basis (instead of
an exclusive basis) for provision of cinema in-foyer advertising sales
agency services; (ii) the profit guarantee as provided by Panasia
Cinemedia in favour of OSGH (China) in relation to the Cinemas (as
calculated by 2% of the aggregate box office income of each of the
Cinemas before tax for each year) including the related adjustment
provisions under the Cinema Advertising Sales Agency Agreement
shall no longer apply; and (iii) OSGH (China) (instead of Panasia
Cinemedia) shall be entitled to determine the advertising fees
payable by the customers in relation to the in-foyer advertising
services in relation to the Cinemas.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, the total amount
received from Panasia Cinemedia under the Cinema Advertising
Sales Agency Agreement amounted to RMB5,961,475, which is
within the annual cap of RMB17,000,000.

Under the Listing Rules, Mr. Wu and his associates are connected
persons of the Company. OSEG is 80% beneficially owned by Mr.
Wau. Panasia Cinemedia, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
OSEG, is an associate of Mr. Wu and therefore, is a connected
person of the Company.

Cinema Management Agreement on OSGH
Sanlitun

On 15 December 2011, St RBEXBZER=EHZHMERER QA
(Orange Sky Golden Harvest Sanlitun (Beijing) Cinema Management
Co., Limited) (“OSGH Sanlitun”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, OSGH (China) and It REXE R EE
AR AT (Beijing Orange Sky Cinema Investment Management
Company Limited) (”Beijing Orange Sky”) entered into a cinema
management agreement in respect of the management and
operations of the cinema which is located at Suite 403-2, 4/F, No. 2,
Worker Stadium Beilu, Chaoyang District, Beijing (the “Relevant
Cinema") for a term from 1 December 2011 to 31 December 2013
(the “Cinema Management Agreement”).

Under the Cinema Management Agreement, OSGH Sanlitun has
agreed to grant Beijing Orange Sky the rights to manage and
operate the Relevant Cinema (the “Grant”) and procure OSGH
(China) to grant the lease of certain key facilities at the Relevant
Cinema to Beijing Orange Sky to facilitate Beijing Orange Sky in
performing its respective obligations to manage and operate the
Relevant Cinema under the Grant. The total consideration of the
transaction comprises a fixed fee in the aggregate sum of
RMB6,200,000, which is payable by Beijing Orange Sky in two
instalments, and an amount representing 10% of the Net Profits (as
defined in the announcement of the Company dated 15 December
2011) derived from the operation of the Relevant Cinema under the
Grant.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the total amount received
from Beijing Orange Sky under the Cinema Management
Agreement amounted to RMB 1,680,000, which is within the annual
cap of RMB2,300,000.

As the entire equity interest of Beijing Orange Sky is owned by Mr.
Wu as at the date of entering into of the Cinema Management
Agreement, Beijing Orange Sky is an associate of Mr. Wu and a
connected person of the Company.

(c)
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(d) Sub-leases of Office Premises

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 5
September 2011 in relation to, inter alia, a sub-lease agreement (the
“First Sub-Lease Renewal Agreement”) dated 5 September 2011
entered into between Beijing Orange Sky (the “Sub-lessor”), as sub-
lessor, and L RIEREARFIZRIEBR A R] (Orange Sky Golden
Harvest (Beijing) TV & Film Production Co., Ltd.) (“Beijing OSGH"),
as sub-lessee and another sub-lease agreement (“Previous Second
Sub-Lease”) dated 5 September 2011 entered into between the
Sub-lessor, as sub-lessor, and OSGH (China), as sub-lessee for the
purpose of sub-leasing of the office premises at parts of First Floor
and Second Floor of House No. 3 at No. 1 Anjialou,
Xiaoliangmagiao Ave, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC (the
“Property”). Both the First Sub-Lease Renewal Agreement and the
Previous Second Sub-Lease expired on 30 June 2013.

On 28 June 2013, the First Sub-Lease Renewal Agreement was
renewed and an additional floor area at the Property was sub-leased
under a renewal agreement (the “First Sub-Leases Second Renewal
Agreement”) entered into between the Sub-lessor and Beijing
OSGH in respect of part of First Floor and Second Floor of House
No. 3 of the Property with a total floor area of approximately
191.88 square metres for a term of three years commencing on 1
July 2013 and expiring on 30 June 2016 (both days inclusive) at the
rent of RMB5.20 per square metre per day, equivalent to an
approximate amount of RMB364,188.24 per annum, with the
management fee of RMBO0.61 per square metre per day, equivalent
to an approximate amount of RMB42,722.08 per annum.

On the same day, a second sub-lease (the “New Second Sub-
Lease"”) was entered into between the Sub-lessor, as sub-lessor, and
I RERTHMEREHER AT (Golden Harvest (Beijing) Cinema
Management Consultancy Company Limited), as sub-lessee, in
relation to the sub-leasing of the office premises at part of Second
Floor and Third Floor of House No. 3 and part of First Floor of House
No. 7 of the Property with a total floor area of approximately
1,020.61 square metres for a term of three years commencing on 1
July 2013 and expiring on 30 June 2016 (both days inclusive) at the
rent of RMB5.20 per square metre per day, equivalent to an
approximate amount of RMB1,937,117.78 per annum with the
management fee of RMB0.61 per square metre per day, equivalent
to an approximate amount of RMB227,238.82 per annum. Out of
1,020.61 square metres of the total floor area under the New
Second Sub-Lease, 964 square metres were sub-leased under the
Previous Second Sub-Lease.

The aggregate amount paid by the Group to the Sub-lessor for the
year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to approximately
RMB3,004,992, which is within the annual cap of RMB3,100,000.
The said cap amount for the year ended 31 December 2013
included the total amount of rental and management fee paid to
the Sub-lessor by Beijing OSGH and OSGH (China) respectively
under the First Sub-Lease Renewal Agreement and the Previous
Second Sub-Lease for the period from 1 January 2013 to 30 June
2013.

Under the Listing Rules, Mr. Wu and his associates are connected
persons of the Company. As the entire equity interest of the Sub-
lessor is owned by Mr. Wu, the Sub-lessor is an associate of Mr. Wu
and accordingly, a connected person of the Company.
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Jiangyin Lease Agreement in respect of
Operating Cinemas in Jiangyin City

On 25 September 2012, OSGH (China), as tenant, and JT &5/
FTRi s E B AR QA (Jiangyin Orange Land Cinema Development
Management Co., Ltd.) (“Jiangyin Orange Land”), as landlord,
entered into a Jiangyin Lease Agreement in respect of all those
premises being portion of 3rd, 4th and 5th Floors of Block 2, with a
total floor area of approximately 17,561 square metres (the “Leased
Property”), of the commercial and cultural complex to be
constructed on a parcel of land situated at the Xiagang
Development Zone, Jiangyin City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC for a
term of 20 years commencing from the expiry date of the 4 months
decoration (rent-free) period after the delivery up of possession of
the Leased Property to OSGH (China) (which is expected to be on or
before 31 December 2014) (the “Jiangyin Lease Agreement”).

During the term of the Jiangyin Lease Agreement, OSGH (China)
shall pay to Jiangyin Orange Land an annual rent which is the higher
of (a) a yearly turnover rent based on certain percentage rates
ranging from 12% to 15% of the net box office income generated
from the operation of the cinema by OSGH (China) at the Leased
Property in the relevant year; and (b) the base rental for the relevant
year under the Jiangyin Lease Agreement, namely RMB3,000,000
for the 1st year with an upward adjustment of 5% per annum for
each of the 2nd to 5th year, and RMB5,000,000 for the 6th year
with an upward adjustment of 5% per annum for each of the 7th
to 20th year of the term. Pursuant to the Jiangyin Lease Agreement,
OSGH (China) is required to pay to Jiangyin Orange Land an amount
of RMB100,000,000 in 3 tranches up to 31 January 2014,
representing approximately 80% of the total amount of the base
rental for the term of the Jiangyin Lease Agreement as base rental
prepayment. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement on 25 September 2012.

On 25 September 2012, Jiangyin Orange Land’s parent company,
I REM R A R AR A A (Beijing Orange Land Cinema
Investment Management Company Limited), executed a deed of
guarantee in favour of OSGH (China) to guarantee certain of
Jiangyin Orange Land’s obligations under the Jiangyin Lease
Agreement.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, an amount of
RMB40,000,000 was paid to Jiangyin Orange Land under the
Jiangyin Lease Agreement, which does not exceed the annual cap
of RMB42,000,000.

Mr. Wu, who is a connected person of the Company, indirectly
owns 84.19% equity interest in Jiangyin Orange Land. Accordingly,
Jiangyin Orange Land is a connected person of the Company and
the Jiangyin Lease Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.
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Master Co-operation Agreement on Cinema
Circuit Services

On 20 May 2013, OSGH (China) entered into a Master Co-operation
Agreement with JERIITIRFZE KT &2 BB A7 (Shenzhen City
Shenying Orange Sky Cinemas Circuit Company Limited) (“SZ City
SYOS Cinemas Circuit”) to provide a framework for the provision of
the services, including but not limited to sourcing of the movies,
provision of new release title of movies, organising and planning of
the movies distribution and marketing arrangement, by SZ City
SYOS Cinemas Circuit to the cinemas operated or to be operated by
OSGH (China) in the PRC (“OSGH Cinemas”) and to standardise the
periods of the individual cinema circuit alliance agreements entered
into or to be entered into between OSGH Cinemas and SZ City
SYOS Cinemas Circuit for the period from 1 April 2013 to 30 June
2014 (the "Master Co-operation Agreement”). The amount of
service fee payable by the individual OSGH Cinema to SZ City SYOS
Cinemas Circuit will be subject to the individual cinema circuit
alliance agreement but it shall not exceed 2% of the net box office
income in any event.

The annual caps in respect of the transactions contemplated under
the Master Co-operation Agreement for the financial years ending
31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 were set at
RMB7,200,000 and RMB7,800,000 respectively. The aggregate
amount of the transactions under the Master Co-operation
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to
approximately RMB1,720,186, which is within the annual cap of
RMB7,200,000.

The Company was informed by Beijing Orange Sky on 17 May 2013
that Beijing Orange Sky had acquired 49% equity interest in SZ City
SYOS Cinemas Circuit on 9 April 2013. As a result of the
abovementioned acquisition, SZ City SYOS Cinemas Circuit has
become a connected person of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the Master Co-operation Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Lease Agreement in respect of Cinema Property
in Tangshan City

On 6 November 2013, OSGH (China), as landlord, and Beijing
Orange Sky, as tenant, entered into a lease agreement, pursuant to
which Beijing Orange Sky will lease the portions of 4th Floor under
household no. 100040001, 5th Floor under household no.
100050001 and 6th Floor under household nos. 100060001 and
100060003 (collectively referred to as Unit 4108) of Bohai New
World Shopping Centre of No. 88 Xinhua West Road, Tangshan
City, Hebei Province, the PRC, with a total gross floor area of
approximately 5,504.43 square metres (the Leased Premises”) from
OSGH (China) for a period of 12 years (“Tangshan Lease
Agreement”). Beijing Orange Sky intends to operate a cinema with
approximately 7 separate screens and 1,200 seats in the Leased
Premises.
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During the term of the Tangshan Lease Agreement, Beijing Orange
Sky shall pay to OSGH (China) an annual rental being the higher of
(a) the annual turnover rental based on certain percentage rates
ranging from 12% to 15% of the net box office income generated
from the operation of the cinema by Beijing Orange Sky at the
Leased Premises in the relevant year; or (b) the base rental for the
relevant year under the Tangshan Lease Agreement, being
RMB1,920,000 for the 1st year; RMB2,040,000 for the 2nd year;
RMB2,160,000 for the 3rd year; and RMB2,520,000 for each of the
4th to 12th of the term. The total base rental in aggregate for the
entire period of the Tangshan Lease Agreement shall be
RMB28,800,000. Beijing Orange Sky paid a sum of RMB200,000 as
security deposit to OSGH (China) after the execution of the
Tangshan Lease Agreement.

Pursuant to the Tangshan Lease Agreement, Beijing Orange Sky
shall pay an annual brand licensing fee of RMB100,000 for using
the brand name of “Orange Sky Golden Harvest” granted by OSGH
(China).

The annual caps in respect of the Tangshan Lease Agreement for
each of the three financial years ending 31 December 2013, 2014
and 2015 were set at RMB300,000, RMB1,500,000 and
RMB2,400,000 respectively. The total payment received from Beijing
Orange Sky during the year ended 31 December 2013 under the
Tangshan Lease Agreement amounted to RMB200,000 which is
within the abovementioned annual cap.

Beijing Orange Sky is a connected person of the Company by virtue
of being an associate of Mr. Wu and accordingly, the entering into
of the Tangshan Lease Agreement and all the transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.

Agency Agreement on Business Development
Projects

On 6 November 2013, OSGH (China) entered into an agency
agreement with 3t R#E K& XL BB AT (Beijing Orange
Sky Orange Land Cultural Consultancy Co., Ltd.) (“Beijing OSOL")
in relation to the appointment of Beijing OSOL as its non-exclusive
agent (a) to source lease and purchase opportunities of cinema
properties in 1st, 2nd and 3rd tier cities (except Chengdu,
Chongging, Hefei and Shenyang) of the PRC; and (b) to explore
opportunities for franchising of the brand name “Orange Sky
Golden Harvest” in the PRC for a period of 3 years commencing
from 6 November 2013 (the “Agency Agreement”).
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If Beijing OSOL successfully procures the execution of a lease
agreement for OSGH (China), OSGH (China) shall pay the following
service fees to Beijing OSOL: (a) basic service fee of RMB50,000 per
screen; and (b) additional service fee in accordance with the rent
free periods so agreed in the relevant lease agreement. If Beijing
OSOL successfully procures the execution of a property purchase
agreement for OSGH (China), OSGH (China) shall pay to Beijing
OSOL a service fee of 1% of the total consideration of the purchase
price of the relevant property. If Beijing OSOL successfully procures
the execution of a franchising agreement by OSGH (China) and a
franchisee, OSGH (China) shall pay to Beijing OSOL a one-off service
fee of 10% of the franchising fee. If pursuant to the relevant
franchising agreement the franchising fee exceeds RMB200,000,
OSGH (China) shall pay to Beijing OSOL an additional service fee
being 20% of the excess part.

The annual caps in respect of the transactions contemplated under
the Agency Agreement for the years ending 31 December 2013, 31
December 2014, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 were
set at RMB4,000,000, RMB 16,000,000, RMB16,500,000 and
RMB17,000,000 respectively. For the year ended 31 December
2013, no service fee was paid by OSGH (China) to Beijing OSOL
under the Agency Agreement.

Beijing OSOL is a connected person of the Company by virtue of
being an associate of Mr. Wu as Mr. Wu indirectly owns
approximately 60% equity interest in Beijing OSOL. Hence, the
transactions under the Agency Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The above transactions constituted continuing connected transactions of
the Company under the Listing Rules and were subject to reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements.

Confirmation from Directors

The Directors, including the non-executive Directors, have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions mentioned under paragraphs (a) to (h)
above and confirmed that the transactions were entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group, on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
to or from independent third parties, and in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have advised that nothing has come to their
attention that caused them to believe the continuing connected
transactions:

(@) have not been approved by the Board;

(b)  have not been, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the provision
of goods or services;

(0) have not been entered into, in all material respects, in accordance

with the terms of the relevant agreement governing the
transactions; and
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(d)  the relevant cap amounts disclosed in the relevant announcements
of the Company, where applicable, have been exceeded during the
financial year ended 31 December 2013.

Save as disclosed above, details of the other connected transactions and/or
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out in note 32 to the financial statements. These other connected
transactions and/or continuing connected transactions constituted de
minimis transactions as defined in the Listing Rules and were exempt from
the reporting, announcement, independent shareholders’ approval, and in
the case of continuing connected transactions, the annual review
requirements. The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed
and confirmed that these other connected transactions and/or continuing
connected transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of the business of the Group, on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms to or from independent
third parties, and in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Remuneration of the employees of the Group is made/determined by
reference to the market, individual performance and their respective
contribution to the Group. As a long-term incentive, the 2009 Share
Option Scheme is in place and the details of which are set out above and
in note 28(a)(i) to the financial statements on page 119 of this annual
report.

Directors’ emoluments are subject to the recommendations of the
remuneration committee of the Company and the Board's approval. Other
emoluments including discretionary bonus and share option, are
determined by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties, abilities,
reputation and performance.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float of the Company’s issued share capital as of the date of this
report.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has made charitable
and other donations in Hong Kong totalling HK$7,600.
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AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 have been
audited by Messrs. KPMG (“"KPMG") who will retire and being eligible, will
offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. A resolution will be submitted at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint KPMG as auditors of
the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Wu Kebo
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Orange Sky
Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 67 to 135, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2013, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As stated in note 15 to the financial statements, the Group has applied the
equity method of accounting for its investment in Vie Show Cinemas Co.
Ltd (“Vie Show"), to include in the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 the Group’s share of
the results and net assets of Vie Show for the year ended 31 December
2013 and as at that date.

Up to the date of this report, the directors of Vie Show have not approved
its financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 and have
not provided written representations in this regard. Therefore the
component auditor of Vie Show was unable to provide us with an audit
opinion in respect of these financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Auditing 600 (“HKSA 600"), Special Considerations —
Audits of Group Financial Statements (Including the Work of Component
Auditors). As there were no other satisfactory audit procedures that we
could adopt, we were unable to fulfil the requirements of HKSA 600.

Consequently, we were unable to apply the requirements of all of the
applicable auditing standards and we were unable to determine whether
any adjustments were necessary to the carrying amount of the Group's
investment in Vie Show and the Group’s share of the results of this joint
venture as included in the Group's consolidated financial statements as at
and for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Any adjustments that might have been found to be necessary in respect of
the carrying amount of the investment in Vie Show as at 31 December
2013 would have a consequential effect on the Group's net assets as at 31
December 2013, and the Group's profit for the year then ended and
related disclosures in these financial statements.
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QUALIFIED OPINION

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in
the basis for qualified opinion paragraph, the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the Company as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

(Restated)

Turnover 3&4 929,334 797,912
Cost of sales (364,740) (320,788)
Gross profit 564,594 477,124
Other revenue 5(@) 42,097 30,692
Other net income 5(b) 24,410 25,104
Selling and distribution costs (502,205) (424,896)
General and administrative expenses (100,543) (95,150)
Other operating expenses (7,741) (6,198)
Valuation gains on investment properties 12 51,492 -
Profit from operations 72,104 6,676
Finance costs 6(a) (47,378) (24,898)
Share of profits of joint ventures 91,947 105,371
Share of losses of associates (266) (449)
Profit before taxation 6 116,407 86,700
Income tax 7(@a) (1,230) 9,527
Profit for the year 115,177 96,227

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 114,986 95,987
Non-controlling interests 191 240
Profit for the year 115,177 96,227
Earnings per share 11

Basic 4.29 cents 3.58 cents
Diluted 4.29 cents 3.58 cents

The notes on pages 75 to 135 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
(RESEIE))
Profit for the year 115,177 96,227
Other comprehensive income for the year:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of:
— overseas subsidiaries 19,092 6,467
— overseas joint ventures (13,497) 17,096
— overseas associates 208 -
5,803 23,563
Total comprehensive income for the year 120,980 119,790
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 120,578 119,532
Non-controlling interests 402 258
Total comprehensive income for the year 120,980 119,790

Note:  There is no tax effect relating to the above components of comprehensive income.

The notes on pages 75 to 135 form part of these financial statements.

68 ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets

As at

31 December
2013
HK$'000

As at

31 December
2012
HK$'000
(Restated)

at 31 December 2013

As at

1 January
2012
HK$'000
(Restated)

Fixed assets 12
— Investment properties 149,264 - -
— Property, plant and equipment 1,345,280 1,043,912 848,628
1,494,544 1,043,912 848,628
Interests in joint ventures 15 344,619 371,132 299,152
Interests in associates 14 13,713 6,876 -
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 17 210,662 144,232 88,018
Club memberships 2,490 2,490 2,490
Trademark 18 79,785 79,785 79,785
Goodwill 19 73,658 73,658 73,658
Deferred tax assets 27(b) 29,512 22,235 6,947
Pledged bank deposits 23 46,905 46,850 21,845
2,295,888 1,791,170 1,420,523
Current assets
Inventories 20 4,977 3,626 3,898
Available-for-sale equity securities 16 - - 20,000
Film rights 21 46,741 58,071 67,363
Trade receivables 22(a) 126,586 83,056 64,221
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 22(b) 160,532 142,248 121,618
Deposits and cash 23 534,536 575,031 606,388
873,372 862,032 883,988
Current liabilities
Bank loans 24 323,581 285,098 68,467
Trade payables 26(a) 101,137 95,275 67,901
Other payables and accrued charges 26(b) 155,634 162,246 157,162
Deferred revenue 26(c) 162,758 106,717 91,362
Obligations under finance leases 25 8,988 4,905 -
Taxation payable 27(a) 9,871 7,899 14,432
761,969 662,140 399,324
Net current assets 111,403 199,892 484,664
Total assets less current liabilities 2,407,291 1,991,062 1,905,187
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

at 31 December 2013

A As at As at

31 December 31 December 1 January
2013 2012 2012
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated)

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans 24 611,576 325,354 376,345
Obligations under finance leases 25 18,045 12,356 -
Deferred tax liabilities 27(b) 12,338 12,112 8,002
641,959 349,822 384,347
NET ASSETS 1,765,332 1,641,240 1,520,840
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28
Share capital 267,982 267,982 268,419
Reserves 1,486,689 1,366,111 1,245,532

Total equity attributable to equity holders

of the Company 1,754,671 1,634,093 1,513,951
Non-controlling interests 10,661 7,147 6,889
TOTAL EQUITY 1,765,332 1,641,240 1,520,840

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2014.

Wu Kebo Mao Yimin
Director Director

The notes on pages 75 to 135 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial

2013
HK$°000

Non-current asset

Position

at 31 December 2013

2012
HK$'000

Interests in subsidiaries . (A 1637003 1,538,756
Current assets

Amount due from a subsidiary 13 1,560 1,560
Prepayments 440 439
Deposits and cash 23 93 20
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 2093 A0
Current liabilities

Payablesand accrued charges Y T
N U A e . 1592
NET ASSETS 1,638,695 1,540,348
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28

Share capital 267,982 267,982
Reserves 1,370,713 1,272,366
TOTAL EQUITY 1,638,695 1,540,348

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2014.

Wu Kebo Mao Yimin
Director Director

The notes on pages 75 to 135 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Share Capital Non-
Share NIE option redemption  Contributed Reserve  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve surplus funds reserve profits Total [EEN equity
Note HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

Balance at 1 January 2013 267,982 664,835 m 8,833 80,000 17,966 62,396 524310 1,634,093 10518 1,644,611
Impact of change in accounting policy 20 - - - - - (9,113) - 9113 - 3371) (3371)
Restated balance at 1 January 2013 267,982 664,835 7m 8,833 80,000 8,853 62,396 533423 1,634,093 7147 1,641,240
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 114,986 114,986 191 15171
Other comprehensive income - - - - - - 5,592 - 5,592 M 5,803
Total comprehensive income - - - - - - 5,592 114,986 120,578 402 120,980

Equity contribution from a non-controlling

interest - - - - - - - - - 3112 3,112
Transfer to retained profits on lapse of

share options 28(a)() - - (52) - - - - 52 - - -
Transfer to/(from) reserves - - - - - 2,120 - (2,120) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2013 267,982 664,835 .19 8,833 80,000 10,973 67,988 646,341 1,754,671 10,661 1,765,332
Balance at 1 January 2012 268419 665,625 5934 8,39 80,000 13,430 38,744 43329 1513844 9739 1,523,583
Impact of change in accounting policy 2(0) - - - - - (5,033) 107 5,033 107 (2,850) (2,743)
Restated balance at 1 January 2012 268419 665,625 5934 8,3% 80,000 8,397 38,851 438329 1,513,951 6,889 1520840
Profit for the year (Restated) - - - - - - - 95,987 95,987 240 96,227
Other comprehensive income (Restated) - - - - - - 23545 - 23,545 18 23,563
Total comprehensive income (Restated) - - - - - - 23,545 95,987 119,532 258 119,790
Equity-settled share-based transactions 28(3)() = - 1,837 - - - - - 1837 - 1837
Shares repurchased 28(a)(i) (437) (790) - 437 - - - (437) (1,227) - (1,227)
Transfer tof(from) reserves (Restated) - - - - - 456 - (456) - - -
Restated balance at 31 December 2012 267,982 664,835 7,171 8,833 80,000 8,853 62,3% 533423 1,634,093 7047 1,641,240

The notes on pages 75 to 135 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Operating activities

2013
HK$°000

2012
HK$'000
(Restated)

Profit before taxation 116,407 86,700
Adjustments for:
Interest income 5@@) (13,933) (12,301)
Finance costs 6(a) 47,378 24,898
Depreciation of fixed assets 12 107,948 80,123
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 6(c) 1,121 71
Gain on disposals of available-for-sale equity securities 5(b) (150) (7,911)
Valuation gains on investment properties 12 (51,492) -
Share of profits of joint ventures (91,947) (105,371)
Share of losses of associates 266 449
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses - 1,837
Exchange (gain)/loss, net (13,842) 4,277
Operating profit before changes in working capital 101,756 72,772
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (1,240) 280
Decrease in film rights 11,858 9,356
Increase in trade receivables (41,875) (17,671)
Increase in other receivables, deposits and prepayments (77,237) (75,394)
Increase in trade payables 4,431 27,250
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accrued charges (10,353) 3,648
Increase in deferred revenue 52,413 15,142
Cash generated from operations 39,753 35,383
Interest received 14,371 11,658
Finance costs paid (52,380) (36,263)
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid (2,136) (494)
Overseas tax paid 27(a) (6,030) (8,142)
Overseas tax refunded 27(a) 159 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (6,263) 2,142
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
HK$’'000 HK$'000
(Restated)

Investing activities

Payment for the purchase of property, plant and equipment (360,211) (241,908)
Payment for the purchase of investment properties (96,953) -
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment 538 -
Proceeds from disposals of available-for-sale equity securities 150 27,911

Equity contribution from a non-controlling interest 3,112 -
Increase in pledged bank deposits - (25,000)
Investment in an associate (241) (1,208)
Advance to an associate (6.654) (6,117)
Repayment from/(advance to) joint ventures 174 (1,526)
Dividends received 104,963 50,487

Net cash used in investing activities (355,122) (197,361)

Financing activities

Draw down of bank loans 552,885 248,861

Repayment of bank loans (238,812) (83,899)
Payment for shares repurchased 28(a)(ii) - (1,227)
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid (6,576) (1,821)
Net cash generated from financing activities 307,497 161,914
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (53,888) (33,305)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 575,031 606,888
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 13,393 1,448
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 23 534,536 575,031

The notes on pages 75 to 135 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2013

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the Company, its subsidiaries (together
“the Group"”), its associates and its joint ventures consist of worldwide film and video distribution, film exhibition in Hong
Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and Singapore, film and television programme production in Hong Kong and Mainland China
and the provision of advertising and consultancy services in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and Singapore. The other
particulars and principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

(i)  These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

(ii) Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Note 2(c) provides information on changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 comprise the Group and the Group's
interests in associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— investment properties (see note 2(h));

—  other leasehold land and buildings, where the leasehold land is classified as being held under a finance lease (see
notes 2(i) and (1)); and

— financial instruments classified as available-for-sale or as trading securities (see note 2(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 33.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2013

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the Group's
financial statements:

— Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements — Presentation of items of other comprehensive
income

—  HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

— HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

—  HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities
—  HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

—  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

—  Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures — Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

The impacts of these developments are discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to present separately the items of other comprehensive income that would
be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are met from those that would never be reclassified to
profit or loss. The Group's presentation of other comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in these financial statements has been modified accordingly.

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

HKFRS 11, which replaces HKAS 31, Interests in joint ventures, divides joint arrangements into joint operations and joint
ventures. Entities are required to determine the type of an arrangement by considering the structure, legal form,
contractual terms and other facts and circumstances relevant to their rights and obligations under the arrangement.
Joint arrangements which are classified as joint operations under HKFRS 11 are recognised on a line-by-line basis to the
extent of the joint operator’s interest in the joint operation. All other joint arrangements are classified as joint ventures
under HKFRS 11 and are required to be accounted for using the equity method in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. Proportionate consolidation is no longer allowed as an accounting policy choice.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 11, the Group has changed its accounting policy with respect to its interests in
joint arrangements and re-evaluated its involvement in its joint arrangements.
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements (continued)

The Group has reclassified the investments from jointly controlled entities to joint ventures. Investments which were
previously accounted for using the proportionate consolidated method are now required to be accounted for using the
equity method of accounting as the joint arrangements are considered to be joint ventures under HKFRS 11. The new
accounting policy was adopted in accordance with the relevant transition provisions. This change in accounting policy
has been applied retrospectively by restating the balances at 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012, with
consequential adjustments to comparatives for the year ended 31 December 2012 as follows:

Impact on the results for the year ended
31 December 2012

As previously Retrospective Restated

reported for effect of results for the

the year ended change in year ended

31 December accounting 31 December

2012 policy in 2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Turnover 1,591,971 (794,059) 797,912
Cost of sales (643,990) 323,202 (320,788)
Gross profit 947,981 (470,857) 477,124
Other revenue 38,989 (8,297) 30,692
Other net income 25,156 (52) 25,104
Selling and distribution costs (762,251) 337,355 (424,896)
General and administrative expenses (114,376) 19,226 (95,150)
Other operating expenses (9,436) 3,238 (6,198)
Profit from operations 126,063 (119,387) 6,676
Finance costs (26,877) 1,979 (24,898)
Share of profits of joint ventures - 105,371 105,371
Share of loss of an associate (449) - (449)
Profit before taxation 98,737 (12,037) 86,700
Income tax (1,033) 10,560 9,527
Profit for the year 97,704 (1,477) 96,227

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 95,987 - 95,987
Non-controlling interests 1,717 (1,477) 240
Profit for the year 97,704 (1,477) 96,227

Earnings per share

Basic 3.58 cents - 3.58 cents

Diluted 3.58 cents - 3.58 cents
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements (continued)

Impact on the results for the year ended

31 December 2012

As previously Retrospective Restated
reported for effect of results for the
the year ended change in year ended
31 December accounting 31 December
2012 policy in 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
Profit for the year 97,704 (1,477) 96,227
Other comprehensive income for the year (after tax):
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of financial
statements of:
— overseas subsidiaries 6,467 - 6,467
— overseas joint ventures 17,328 (232) 17,096
23,795 (232) 23,563
Total comprehensive income for the year 121,499 (1,709) 119,790
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 119,639 (107) 119,532
Non-controlling interests 1,860 (1,602) 258
Total comprehensive income for the year 121,499 (1,709) 119,790
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements (continued)

Impact on the financial position as at
31 December 2012

Retrospective
As previously effect of Restated

reported as at change in balance as at
31 December accounting 31 December
2012 policy in 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Non-current assets

Fixed assets 1,413,351 (369,439) 1,043,912
Interests in joint ventures - 371,132 371,132
Interest in an associate 6,876 - 6,876
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 193,886 (49,654) 144,232
Club memberships 2,490 - 2,490
Trademark 79,785 - 79,785
Goodwill 73,658 - 73,658
Deferred tax assets 22,547 (312) 22,235
Pledged bank deposits 69,296 (22,446) 46,850

1,861,889 (70,719) 1,791,170

Current assets

Inventories 5,789 (2,163) 3,626
Film rights 59,081 (1,010) 58,071
Trade receivables 112,120 (29,064) 83,056
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 156,576 (14,328) 142,248
Deposits and cash 729,261 (154,230) 575,031

1,062,827 (200,795) 862,032

Current liabilities

Bank loans 323,204 (38,106) 285,098
Trade payables 165,647 (70,372) 95,275
Other payables and accrued charges 211,671 (49,425) 162,246
Deferred revenue 178,439 (71,722) 106,717
Obligations under finance lease 4,905 - 4,905
Taxation payable 21,221 (13,322) 7,899

905,087 (242,947) 662,140
Net current assets 157,740 42,152 199,892
Total assets less current liabilities 2,019,629 (28,567) 1,991,062
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements (continued)

Impact on the financial position as at
31 December 2012

Retrospective
As previously effect of Restated

reported as at change in balance as at
31 December accounting 31 December
2012 policy in 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans 325,354 - 325,354
Deposits received 8,830 (8,830) -
Obligations under finance lease 12,356 - 12,356
Deferred tax liabilities 28,478 (16,366) 12,112
375,018 (25,196) 349,822
NET ASSETS 1,644,611 (3,371) 1,641,240
Capital and reserves
Share capital 267,982 - 267,982
Reserves 1,366,111 - 1,366,111
Total equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company 1,634,093 - 1,634,093
Non-controlling interests 10,518 (3,371) 7,147
TOTAL EQUITY 1,644,611 (3,371) 1,641,240
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(9]

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements (continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2012

As previously Retrospective Restated

reported for effect of cash flows for

the year ended change in the year ended

31 December accounting 31 December

2012 policy in 2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Net cash generated from operating activities 164,836 (162,694) 2,142
Net cash used in investing activities (289,411) 92,050 (197,361)
Net cash generated from financing activities 137,591 24,323 161,914
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13,016 (46,321) (33,305)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 705,664 (98,776) 606,888
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 10,581 (9,133) 1,448
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 729,261 (154,230) 575,031
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements (continued)

Impact on the financial position
as at 1 January 2012

As previously Retrospective Restated
reported effect of balance

as at change in as at
1 January accounting 1 January
2012 policy in 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Non-current assets

Fixed assets 1,206,446 (357,818) 848,628
Interests in joint ventures - 299,152 299,152
Available-for-sale equity securities 149 (149) -
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 135,103 (47,085) 88,018
Club memberships 2,490 - 2,490
Trademark 79,785 - 79,785
Goodwill 73,658 - 73,658
Deferred tax assets 7,335 (388) 6,947
Pledged bank deposits 48,010 (26,165) 21,845

1,552,976 (132,453) 1,420,523

Current assets

Inventories 6,137 (2,239) 3,898
Available-for-sale equity securities 20,000 - 20,000
Film rights 68,640 (1,277) 67,363
Trade receivables 84,226 (20,005) 64,221
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 133,243 (11,625) 121,618
Deposits and cash 705,664 (98,776) 606,888

1,017,910 (133,922) 883,988

Current liabilities

Bank loans 127,252 (58,785) 68,467
Trade payables 120,205 (52,304) 67,901
Other payables and accrued charges 205,920 (48,758) 157,162
Deferred revenue 153,199 (61,837) 91,362
Taxation payable 29,778 (15,346) 14,432

636,354 (237,030) 399,324
Net current assets 381,556 103,108 484,664
Total assets less current liabilities 1,934,532 (29,345) 1,905,187

82 ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013




2

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9]

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements (continued)

Impact on the financial position
as at 1 January 2012

As previously Retrospective Restated
reported effect of balance

as at change in as at
1 January accounting 1 January
2012 policy in 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans 376,345 - 376,345
Deposits received 9,891 (9,891) -
Deferred tax liabilities 24,713 (16,711) 8,002

410,949 (26,602) 384,347
NET ASSETS 1,523,583 (2,743) 1,520,840

Capital and reserves

Share capital 268,419 - 268,419
Reserves 1,245,425 107 1,245,532

Total equity attributable to equity holders of

the Company 1,513,844 107 1,513,951
Non-controlling interests 9,739 (2,850) 6,889
TOTAL EQUITY 1,523,583 (2,743) 1,520,840

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures required by HKFRS
12 are generally more extensive than those previously required by the respective standards. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group has provided these disclosures in note 15.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with a single source of fair value measurement guidance.
HKFRS 13 also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair value measurements for both financial instruments
and non-financial instruments. To the extent that the requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group has provided
those disclosures in notes 12(b) and 29(e). The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any material impact on the fair
value measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties)
are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of
a financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity holders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position
in accordance with notes 2(r) or (s) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 2(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture (see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(m)).

Associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of
the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(f) and (m)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement, whereas the Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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(e)

(f)

(9)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate or joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the date when significant influence or joint
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 2(g)).

Goodwiill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree, over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.
When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(m)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities
The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by
a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs. Subsequently, investments in debt and equity
securities that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(m)).
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(9)

(h)

0]

Other investments in debt and equity securities (continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into trading securities or held-to-maturity securities are classified as available-
for-sale securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve. As an
exception to this, investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted price in an active market for an identical
instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised in the statement of financial
position at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(m)). Dividend income from equity securities and interest income from
these interest-bearing investments calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policies set out in notes 2(w)(ix) and 2(w)(vii), respectively. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of debt securities are also recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note 2(m)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group and/or the Company
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2()) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still in the course of construction or development at the
end of the reporting period and their fair values cannot be reliably measured at that time in which case they are stated
at cost less impairment losses. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 2(w)(vi).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a property-by-property basis. Any
such property interest which has been classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held under a
finance lease (see note 2(l)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as described in note 2(I).

Property, plant and equipment
The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(m)):

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land, classified as held under operating leases (see
note 2(1));

— machinery and equipment classified as being held under finance lease (see note 2(l)); and
—  other items of plant and equipment, other than construction in progress.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of
property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repair and maintenance is normally charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure
has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
property, plant and equipment and where the cost of the item can be measured realisably, the expenditure is capitalised
as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

86 ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013




Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2013

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

)

(k)

)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method, at the following rates per annum:

— Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases Over the remaining lease term
— Buildings 2.0%-6.7%
— Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of lease term or its useful life
— Machinery and equipment 10%-20.0%
— Furniture and fixtures 8.3%-20.0%
— Motor vehicles 20.0%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal. On disposal or retirement, the attributable revaluation surplus not previously
dealt with in retained profits is transferred directly to retained profits.

Construction in progress represents an asset under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Club memberships
Club memberships are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses (see note
2(m)). Cost includes fees and expenses directly related to the acquisition of the club memberships.

Any gain or loss arising from disposal of club memberships is recognised in profit or loss.

Trademark

Trademark is stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(m)).
Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the following exception:

—  property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
is classified as investment property on a property-by-property basis and, if classified as investment
property, is accounted for as if held under a finance lease (see note 2(h)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.
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(I) Leased assets (continued)
(ii)  Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified as an investment property (see note 2(h)).

(iii)  Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are included in fixed
assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note
2(i). Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(m).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

(m) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and trade and other receivables
Investments in equity securities and other current and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognised as follows:

—  For investments in associates and joint ventures accounted for under the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements (see note 2(e)), the impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its carrying amount in accordance with note 2(m)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with note 2(m)(ii).

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the market
rate of return for a similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses for
equity securities are not reversed.
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(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(0]

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and trade and other receivables (continued)

—  For trade and other current receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where these financial assets share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

— For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that has been recognised in the fair value reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets directly, except for impairment losses
recognised in respect of trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  fixed assets;

—  pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as being held under an operating lease;

—  trademark;

—  club memberships;

— film rights;

—  goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position.
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(m) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year (see notes 2(m)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period, or in any other period subsequently, the increase is recognised
in other comprehensive income and not profit or loss.

(n) Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using a first-in, first-out basis and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the year the write-down of loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Film rights

(i)  Filmrights
Film rights represent films and television drama series and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 2(m)).

Amortisation of film rights is charged to profit or loss based on the proportion of actual income earned during
the year to the total estimated income from the sale of film rights.

(ii)  Film production in progress
Film production in progress represents films under production and are stated at cost less any impairment losses
(see note 2(m)). Costs include all direct costs associated with the production of films. Impairment losses are made
for costs which are in excess of the expected future revenue generated by these films. Costs are transferred to
self-produced programmes upon completion.

(iii)  Self-produced programmes
Self-produced programmes are stated at cost, comprising direct expenditure and an attributable portion of direct
production overheads, less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(m)). Amortisation is
charged to the profit or loss based on the proportion of actual income and earned during the year to the total
estimated income from the sale of the self-produced programmes.

(iv) Investments in film/drama production
Investments in film/drama production are stated initially at cost and adjusted thereafter for the net income
derived from the investments, and less any accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(m)).

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(m)) except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(v)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(t) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year
of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is transferred
to the share premium account) or the option expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the reporting period is
permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An accrual is
made at the end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the year
by the employees and carried forward.

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group's employees have completed the required number of years of service to the Group in order
to be eligible for long service payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the “Employment
Ordinance”) in the event of the termination of their employment. The Group is liable to make such payments in
the event that such a termination of employment meets the circumstances specified in the Employment
Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future long service payments expected to be made. The
provision is based on the best estimate of the probable future payments which have been earned by the
employees from their services to the Group to the end of the reporting period.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme (the “Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate in the Scheme.
Contributions to the Scheme are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The Group’s employer
contributions are fully and immediately vested with the employees when contributed to the Scheme. The assets
of the Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") are members
of the state-sponsored retirement scheme (the “State Scheme”) operated by the PRC government. Contributions
to the State Scheme are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they became payable in accordance with the rules of the State Scheme.
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(u) Income tax

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the
tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those temporary differences arising
from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(h), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of
those assets at their carrying value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Income tax (continued)

(iv)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or
—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax

liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

(0]

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance
with note 2(v)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group
under the guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group or Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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(w) Revenue recognition

(x)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Income from box office takings is recognised when the services have been rendered to the buyers;
(i) Income from film distribution and screen advertising is recognised at the time when the services are provided;

(i) Income from promotion, advertising, advertising production and agency fee and consultancy service is recognised
upon the provision of the services;

(iv)  Income from investments in film/drama production is recognised when the films or television programmes are
released for distribution;

(v)  Income from confectionery sales and audio visual sales is recognised, at the point of sales when the confectionery
and audio visual products are given to the customers;

(vi)  Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned;

(vii)  Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method;

(viii)  Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the group will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for
the cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense;

(ix)  Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established;

(x)  Income from tickets booking is recognised upon the provision of the services;

(xi)  Income from gift voucher purchases is recognised when customers exchange them for goods/services or upon
expiry; and

(xii)  Income from membership fees is recognised in profit or loss in the accounting period covered by the membership
terms.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except for those arising from the translation of the financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures which are taken directly to the exchange reserve.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the
fair value was measured.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised in equity which
relate to that foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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(y)

(2)

(aa)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)~ One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third party.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature of operating
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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TURNOVER

Turnover represents the income from the sale of film, video and television rights, film and TV drama distribution, theatre
operation, promotion and advertising fee income, agency and consultancy fee income, and proceeds from the sale of audio
visual products.

The Group's customer base is diversified and there is no customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's
revenue. Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from customers are set out in note 29(a) to the financial statements.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following reportable segments. No operating segments have been aggregated to
form the reportable segments, which are as follows:

— Hong Kong

—  Mainland China
—  Taiwan

—  Singapore

The results of the Group’s revenue from external customers for entities located in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and
Singapore are set out in the table below.

Each of the above reportable segments primarily derive their revenue from film exhibition, film and video distribution, film and
television programme production, provision of advertising and consultancy services. The reportable segments, Taiwan and
Singapore, represent the performance of the joint ventures operating in Taiwan and Singapore, respectively. For the purposes
of assessing segment performance and allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive management
monitors the revenue and results attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment revenue and results

Revenue is allocated to the reporting segment based on the local entities’ location of external customers. Expenses are
allocated to the reportable segments with reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses incurred by those
geographical locations or which otherwise arise from the depreciation and amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is operating profit after taxation.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning operating profit after taxation, management is provided with
segment information concerning revenue.

Management evaluates performance primarily based on operating profit including the share of results of joint ventures of
each segment. Intra-segment pricing is generally determined at arm’s length basis.
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Segment information regarding the Group's revenue and results by geographical market is presented below:

Segment revenue

Revenue from external customers

Hong Kong

2013

HK$'000

2012
HK$'000

Mainland China
2013 2012
HK$'000  HK$'000

Consolidated
2013
HK$'000

Taiwan
2013
HK$'000

Singapore
2013
HK$'000

2012
HK$'000

2012
HK$'000

2012
HK$'000
(Restated)

— Exhibition 176,106 223,492 674,698 524,773 457,088 430,096 399,735 362,981 1,707,627 1,541,342
— Distribution and production 74,712 73,529 41,074 6,120 4,110 11,801 9,345 14917 129,241 106,367
— Corporate 1,252 2314 - - - - - - 1,252 2314
Reportable segment revenue 252,070 299,335 715,772 530,893 461,198 441,897 409,080 377,898 1,838,120 1,650,023
Reportable segment profit after taxation 49,569 37,482 3,563 3,863 33,7117 46,419 53,262 55,140 140,111 142,904
Reconciliation — Revenue
Reportable segment revenue 1,838,120 1,650,023
Share of revenue from joint ventures in Taiwan and Singapore (870,278)  (819,795)
Elimination of intra-segmental revenue (5,920) (4,018)
Others (32,588) (28,298)
929,334 797,912

Reconciliation — Profit before taxation

Reportable profit after taxation from external customers
Unallocated operating expenses, net

Non-controlling interests

Income tax

Profit before taxation

140,111 142,904
(25125)  (46,917)
191 240
1,230 (9,527)
116,407 86,700
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5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME

(@) Other revenue

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

(Restated)

Interest income from bank deposits 13,933 12,301
Miscellaneous income 28,164 18,391
42,097 30,692

(b) Other net income

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

(GENEIED))

(Loss)/gain on settlements of cinema projects, net (1.161) 6,080
Gain on disposals of available-for-sale equity securities 150 7,911

Compensation income from a contractor for delays in construction

progress (note) 5,894 12,491

Exchange gain/(loss), net 19,527 (1,378)
24,410 25,104

Note: The Group has an agreement with a contractor in respect of compensation for delays in construction progress together with
punitive damages relating to cinemas in Mainland China. For the year ended 31 December 2013, in addition to the
reimbursement of expenses of HK$12,866,000 (2012: HK$28,870,000), an amount of HK$5,894,000 (2012: HK$12,491,000)
representing compensation of punitive damages was recorded as other net income.
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6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000

(Restated)

(@) Finance costs

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable

— within five years 16,346 17,257

— after five years 30,222 15,818

46,568 33,075

Finance charges on obligations under finance leases 2,136 494
Other ancillary borrowing costs 6,174 4,329
Total finance costs on financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss 54,878 37,898
Less: Finance costs capitalised into leasehold improvements* (7.500) (13,000)
47,378 24,898

* The finance costs have been capitalised at rates ranging from 6.55% to 7.86% per annum (2012: 5.25% to 8.46% per annum).

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000

(Restated)

(b) Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments (note 8))

Salaries, wages and other benefits (note (i) 146,808 128,744
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans 1,146 1,290
147,954 130,034

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000

(Restated)

(c) Otheritems

Cost of inventories 27,566 18,535
Cost of services provided 311,872 271,320
Depreciation of fixed assets 107,948 80,123
Amortisation of film rights (note (ii)) 25,302 30,933
Auditors’ remuneration 3,005 2,758
Operating lease charges in respect of land and buildings
— minimum lease payments 133,472 103,645
— contingent rentals 21,098 20,028
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 1,121 71
Gain on disposals of available-for-sale equity securities (150) (7,911)
Rental income less direct outgoings (7.786) (3,771)
Dividend income from a listed investment - (566)
Notes:
(i) The amount includes provision for long service payments.

(ii) The amortisation of film rights for the year is included in “Cost of sales” of the consolidated income statement.
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for the year ended 31 December 2013

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

(Restated)

The Group

Current income tax

Provision for Hong Kong tax 1,100 -
Provision for overseas tax 12,464 3,392
Over-provision in respect of prior years (6.066) (1,796)

7,498 1,596

Deferred tax — Overseas (note 27(b))

Reversal of temporary differences (6,268) (11,123)

Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2013 is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the year. No
provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax last year as the tax losses brought forward from previous years exceeded the
estimated assessable profits for the year.

The provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax of the subsidiaries established in the PRC is calculated at 25% (2012: 25%) of
the estimated taxable profits for the year.

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant jurisdictions.

The China tax law imposes a withholding tax at 10% unless reduced by a treaty or agreement, for dividends distributed by a
PRC-resident enterprise to its immediate holding company outside Mainland China for earnings generated beginning on 1
January 2008 and undistributed earnings generated prior to 1 January 2008 are exempt for such withholding tax. As at 31
December 2013, the Group has not provided for income taxes on accumulated earnings generated by its Mainland China
subsidiaries for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 since it is probable that they will not be distributed to the
immediate holding company outside Mainland China in the foreseeable future. It is not practicable to estimate the amount of
additional taxes that might be payable on such undistributed earnings.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has provided HK$226,000 (2012: HK$4,110,000) for income taxes on
accumulated earnings generated by its joint venture in Taiwan which will be distributed to the Group in the foreseeable future.
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7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and profit before taxation at applicable tax rates:

2013 2012

HK$’'000 HK$'000
(Restated)

Profit before taxation 116,407 86,700

Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the rates applicable to

profits in the jurisdictions concerned 19,960 10,715
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 13,002 12,179
Tax effect of non-taxable income (7.878) (15,268)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised 4,493 2,650
Tax effect of previously unrecognised prior years' tax losses utilised this year (3,845) (4,692)
Tax effect of losses attributable to associates 67 112
Tax effect of profits attributable to joint ventures (15,631) (17,913)
Tax effect of temporary differences unrecognised, net (3,098) 376
Provision for Taiwan withholding tax for the year 226 4,110
Qver-provision in prior years (6,066) (1,796)
Actual tax expense/(credit) 1,230 (9,527)

8 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as
follows:

Salaries, Equity-
allowances  Retirement settled
Directors’ and benefits scheme share-based 2013 2012

fees in kind contributions  payments Total Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
(Note)

Executive directors

WU, Kebo - 1,398 - - 1,398 3,201
LI, Pei Sen - 240 - - 240 240
TAN, Boon Pin Simon - 628 3 - 631 490
WU, Keyan - 597 15 - 612 581
MAQO, Yimin - 2,226 88 - 2,314 2,283

Independent non-executive directors

LEUNG, Man Kit 340 - - - 340 330
HUANG, Shao-Hua George 230 - - - 230 220
WONG, Sze Wing 240 - - - 240 220

810 5,089 106 - 6,005 7,565

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors under the Group’s share option schemes. The value of
these share options is measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for equity-settled share-based payment transactions as set
out in note 2(t)(ii) to the financial statements. None of the directors have received any share based payments from the Company or any
of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$1,837,000).
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for the year ended 31 December 2013

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in note 28(a)(i)
to the financial statements.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, two (2012: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8 to
the financial statements. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2012: three) is as follows:

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

Salaries and other emoluments 4,062 4,349
Retirement scheme contributions 45 69
4,107 4,418

The emoluments of the three (2012: three) individuals with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

2013 2012

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

HK$Nil-HK$ 1,499,999 2 2
HK$1,500,000-HK$2,000,000 1 1

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company includes a profit of HK$98,347,000 (2012:
HK$88,781,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$114,986,000 (2012: HK$95,987,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 2,679,819,248
(2012: 2,680,372,144), in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic and diluted)

2013 2012

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 2,679,819,248 2,684,194,248
Effect of shares repurchased - (3,822,104)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic and diluted) at
31 December 2,679,819,248 2,680,372,144

(b) Diluted earnings per share
There were no diluted potential shares in existence during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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12 FIXED ASSETS
(@) The Group

Property, plant and equipment

Machinery
Investment Leasehold Leasehold and Furniture Motor  Construction

properties land Buildings  improvements equipment  and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Cost or valuation:

At 1 January 2013 (Restated) - - 18,878 674,152 351,019 48,027 4,058 224,542 1,320,676
Additions 96,953 127,998 7,021 175,249 55,687 129 381 9,788 480,369
Disposals - - - (70,470) (9,098) (5.234) (256) - (85,058)
Transfers - - - 65,153 2,531 610 - (68,294) -
Fair value adjustments 51,492 - - - - - - - 51,492
Exchange adjustments 819 - 568 17,041 9,240 1122 4 6,246 35,040
At 31 December 2013 149,264 127,998 26,467 861,125 409,379 51,817 4187 172,282 1,802,519
Representing:

Cost 149,264 127,998 26,467 861,125 409,379 51817 4187 172,282 1,802,519

Accumulated depreciation and

amortisation:
At 1 January 2013 (Restated) - - 2,833 162,045 92,156 16,664 3,066 - 276,764
Charge for the year - 850 191 53,969 46,386 4319 453 - 107,948
Written back on disposals - - - (69,895) (8,377) (4,917) (210) - (83,399)
Exchange adjustments - - 116 3,176 2,974 398 ()] - 6,662
At 31 December 2013 - 850 4,920 149,295 133,139 16,464 3,307 - 307,975
Net book value:
At 31 December 2013 149,264 127,148 21,547 711,830 276,240 35,353 880 172,282 1,494,544
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12 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)
(@) The Group (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Machinery
Leasehold and Furniture Motor  Construction

Buildings  improvements equipment and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Cost or valuation:

At 1 January 2012 (Restated) 18,832 471,867 251,244 34,166 4,09 265,866 1,046,071

Additions (Restated) - 107,336 89,830 10,725 - 66,051 273,942
Disposals (Restated) - 67) (1,361) (58) - - (1,486)
Transfers (Restated) - 94,089 10,789 3,137 - (108,015) -
Exchange adjustments (Restated) 46 927 517 57 (38) 640 2,149
At 31 December 2012 (Restated) 18,878 674,152 351,019 48,027 4,058 224,542 1,320,676
Representing:

Cost (Restated) 18,878 674,152 351,019 48,027 4,058 224,542 1,320,676

Accumulated depreciation and amortisation:

At 1 January 2012 (Restated) 941 124,151 57,382 12,543 2,426 - 197,443
Charge for the year (Restated) 1,884 37,716 35,755 4,092 676 - 80,123
Written back on disposals (Restated) - (24) (1,333) (58) - - (1,415
Exchange adjustments (Restated) 8 202 352 87 (36) - 613
At 31 December 2012 (Restated) 2833 162,045 92,156 16,664 3,066 - 276,764
Net book value:

At 31 December 2012 (Restated) 16,045 512,107 258,863 31,363 992 224,542 1,043,912

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group acquired fixed assets in the aggregate amount of
HK$480,369,000, which mainly comprised payments for land and buildings, investment properties, construction in
progress, leasehold improvements and machinery and equipment. Included in the Group’s additions to fixed assets
during the year is an acquisition of office premises located in Hong Kong, which amounted to HK$171,881,000, in
March 2013. Part of the office premises acquired with amounted to HK$37,689,000, is held to earn rental income or
for capital appreciation purposes and is classified and accounted for as investment property using the fair value model.

In September 2013, the Group also acquired a cinema area of a shopping mall located in Tangshan for HK$59,264,000,
which is held to earn rental income or for capital appreciations purpose and is classified and accounted for as
investment property using the fair value model.
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12 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(b) Fair value measurement of properties
(i)  Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s properties measured at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data is

not available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs.

Fair value at
31 December
2013
HK$’'000

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2013 categorised into

Level 3
HK$'000

Level 2
HK$'000

Level 1
HK$°000

Group
Recurring fair value measurement
Investment properties:

— Commercial — Mainland China
— Commercial — Hong Kong

111,264 - -
38,000 -

111,264
38,000 -

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into
or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end
of the reporting period in which they occur.

All of the Group's investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2013. The valuations were carried out
by independent firms of surveyors, Savills Property Services (Shanghai) Co. Ltd and RHL Appraisal Ltd, who have
among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and
category of properties being valued. The Group’s management has discussions with the surveyors about the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuations are performed at the end of the reporting
period.

(ii)  Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements
The fair value of investment property located in Hong Kong is determined using the market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties on a price per square foot basis using
market data which is publicly available.

(iii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Investment property
Commercial — Mainland China

Valuation Unobservable

techniques input Range

Market comparison Location factor -4.76% to 0.00%

approach
Building specific -1.9% to0 3.00%

Floor level adjustment 45% to 50%

Level height adjustment -20% to 20%

1 06 ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013




Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2013

12 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(iii)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

The fair value of investment property located in Mainland China is determined using the market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties on a price per square metre basis, adjusted
for a premium or a discount specific to the quality of the Group's buildings compared to recent sales. A higher
premium for higher quality buildings will result in a higher fair value measurement.

The movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

Investment property — Commercial — Mainland China HK$'000

At 1 January 2013 -

Additions 59,264
Exchange adjustment 819
Fair value adjustment 51,181
At 31 December 2013 111,264

Fair value adjustments of investment properties are included in “valuation gains on investment properties” of the
consolidated income statement.

All the gains recognised in profit or loss for the year arise from the properties held at the end of the reporting
period.

(c)  The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows:

2013 2012 (Restated)
Leasehold land Buildings Leasehold land Buildings
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
In Hong Kong
— long leases 127,148 44,962 - -

Outside Hong Kong
— medium-term leases - 125,849 - 16,045

127,148 170,811 - 16,045

Representing:

Land and buildings carried

at fair value - 149,264 - -
Buildings carried at cost - 21,547 - 16,045
- 170,811 - 16,045

Interest in leasehold land held for
own use under operating leases 127,148 - - -
127,148 170,811 - 16,045
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14

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
Unlisted shares, at cost 167,654 167,654
Capital contribution in respect of equity-settled share-based payments 11,744 11,744
Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,492,468 1,493,290
1,671,866 1,672,688
Less: Impairment losses (33,303) (132,372)
1,638,563 1,540,316
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000

Included in
— Non-current 1,637,003 1,538,756
— Current 1,560 1,560
1,638,563 1,540,316

Details of principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and are not expected to be recovered within one year, except for
an amount due from a subsidiary of HK$1,560,000 (2012: HK$1,560,000) which is expected to be settled within one year
and is included within current assets.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

The Group
2013 2012
HK$’'000 HK$'000
Share of net assets 752 759
Amount due from an associate 12,961 6,117
13,713 6,876

Amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-free, has no fixed terms of repayment and is expected to be recovered
after more than one year.
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14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The following list contains the particulars of the principal associate, which is an unlisted corporate entity, which affected the

results and net assets of the Group:

Form of
business

Name of associate

structure

Place of
incorporation
and operation

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital

Proportion of ownership interest

Group's
effective
interest

Held by
a subsidiary

Held by
the Company

Principal activity

EM=EEEER
RATHARAT

The associates of the Group are not material in aggregate or individually.

15 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Share of net assets

Incorporated

PRC

Registered capital
RMB2,000,000

49% - 49%

Theatre operation

The Group

2013
HK$'000

344,619

2012
HK$'000
(GESEIED))

371,132

The following list contains the particulars of the principal joint ventures, all of which are unlisted corporate entities, which

affected the results and net assets of the Group:

Name of joint venture

Form of
business
structure

Place of

incorporation/

operation

Particulars of
issued and
paid up capital

Proportion of ownership interest

Group's
effective Held by

subsidiaries

Held by
Company

interest

Principal activity

Dartina Development
Limited

Golden Village
Entertainment
(Singapore) Pte Ltd.

Golden Village Pictures
Pte Ltd.

Golden Village Holding
Pte Ltd.

Golden Village Multiplex
Pte Ltd.

Vie Show Cinemas
Co. Ltd.**

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Hong Kong

Singapore

Singapore

Singapore

Singapore

Taiwan

31,200,082
shares of HK$ 1 each

1,100,000
shares of S$1 each

1,000,000
shares of S$1 each

15,504,688 shares of
S$1 each

8,000,000
shares of S$1 each

80,000,000
shares of NTD10 each

50% - 50%
50% - 50%
50% - 50%
50% - 50%
50% - 50%
35.71% - 35.71%

Investment
holding

Investment
holding

Distribution of
motion pictures

Investment
holding

Theatre
operation

Theatre
operation and
investment
holding
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15 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

All joint ventures in which the Group participates, which are accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements, are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market prices are not available.

Summarised financial information of Dartina Development Limited and Vie Show Cinemas Co. Ltd., adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed below:

Dartina Development Limited Vie Show Cinemas Co. Ltd.**
2013 2012 2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000

Gross amounts of the joint ventures:

Current assets 164,214 227,796 286,578 245,777
Non-current assets 418,476 451,032 534,808 595,993
Current liabilities (225,166) (273,914) (293,481) (299,244)
Non-current liabilities (24,696) (29,552) (28,871) (29,180)
Equity 332,828 375,632 499,034 513,346

Included in the above assets and liabilities:

Cash and cash equivalents 115,702 175,743 240,418 185,823
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade

and other payables and provisions) - 66,570 - 13,500
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding

trade and other payables and provisions) - - 25,017 24,726
Revenue 801,232 735,552 1,271,291 1,193,739
Profit from continuing operations 106,260 105,106 110,106 152,044
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income 106,260 105,106 110,106 152,044
Dividends received from the joint ventures 135,560 63,400 104,125 52,610

Included in the above profits:

Depreciation and amortisation 50,124 41,364 74,297 69,544
Interest income 924 134 710 638
Interest expense 214 3,603 93 495
Income tax expense 22,610 24 22,551 29,538

Reconciled to the Group's interests
in the joint ventures

Gross amounts of the joint ventures’ net assets 332,828 375,632 499,034 513,346
Group's effective interest 50% 50% 35.71% 35.71%
Group's share of the joint ventures’ net assets 166,414 187,816 178,205 183,316
Goodwill - - - -

Carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements 166,414 187,816 178,205 183,316

* The summarised financial information of this joint venture is extracted from the unaudited management accounts, adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies.
# The joint venture is not audited by KPMG.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2013

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Note:

The Group has applied the equity method of accounting for its investment in Vie Show Cinemas Co. Ltd (“Vie Show"), to include in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 the Group'’s share of the results and net assets of Vie Show for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and as at that date.

Up to the date of these financial statements, the directors of Vie Show have not approved its financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013 and have not provided written representations in this regard as they need more time to finalise the financial statements.
Therefore the auditors of Vie Show were unable to issue an audit opinion in respect of these financial statements.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY SECURITIES

At 31 December 2011, the Group held 10,000,000 shares in Overseas Chinese Town (Asian) Holdings Limited (“Overseas
Chinese”), a company listed in Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group disposed of all its shares in
Overseas Chinese and recorded a gain of HK$7,911,000.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Included in other receivables, deposits and prepayments as at 31 December 2013 was an amount of RMB80,000,000
(equivalent to approximately of HK$101,600,000) (2012: RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to approximately of HK$49,320,000)) in
respect of the lease of a property in the PRC with a related company for the purpose of theatre operation. Further details are
discussed in note 32(vii) to the financial statements.

TRADEMARK

The Group
2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

Cost and carrying amount

At 1 January and 31 December 79,785 79,785

Trademark represents a perpetual license for the use of the brand name “Golden Harvest” which takes the form of sign,
symbol, name, logo, design or any combination thereof.

The directors are of the opinion that the Group’s trademark has an indefinite useful life due to the following reasons:

(i) the trademark, which was acquired by the Group in 2001, has been in use for a considerable number of years and will
continue to be used for the long term; and

(i) the Group has incurred and intends to continue to incur significant advertising and promotion expenses, which are
charged to profit or loss when incurred, to maintain and increase the market value of its trademark.

Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, a firm of independent professional qualified valuers, has confirmed, in their valuation
of the Group’s trademark, that the fair value of the trademark exceeded its carrying value as at 31 December 2013.
Accordingly, no impairment loss was recorded at 31 December 2013.
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GOODWILL

The Group
2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

Cost and carrying amount

At 1 January and 31 December 73,658 73,658

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, the Group has assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill for the cash-
generating units (“CGU") and determined that such goodwill has not been impaired at 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGU identified according to country of operation and business segment as follows:

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$’'000
Distribution and production — Mainland China 73,658 73,658

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a period of five years and a pre-tax discount rate at
20% based on the Group’s weighted average cost of capital.

The assumptions used are based on management'’s past experience of the specific market, with reference to external sources
of information. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the segment.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are carried at cost of HK$4,977,000 at 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$3,626,000 (restated)) and comprise largely
goods held for resale.

The carrying amount of inventories sold and recognised as an expense to the consolidated income statement of the Group
was HK$27,566,000 (2012: HK$18,535,000 (restated)).

FILM RIGHTS

The Group
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
(ESELE))
Film rights — completed 41,428 46,812
Investment in film production 2,106 6,471
43,534 53,283
Film production in progress, at cost 3,207 4,788
46,741 58,071

Film rights represent films and television drama series and self-produced programmes.
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21 FILM RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Investments in film/drama production represent funds advanced to licensed production houses for co-financing of the
production of films and/or television programmes, which are free to be exploited by the production houses. The investments
are governed by the relevant investment agreements entered into between the Group and the production houses whereby
the Group is entitled to benefits generated from the distribution of the related films and/or television programmes. The
amounts will be recoverable by the Group from a pre-determined share of the sales proceeds of the respective co-financed
films or television programmes, resulting from the distribution to be confirmed by the relevant production houses.

Film production in progress represents films under production.

In accordance with note 2(0) of the Group’s accounting policies, the Group performed impairment tests at 31 December 2013
and 2012 by comparing the attributable carrying amounts of the film rights/self produced programmes with the recoverable
amounts.

The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the film production in progress based on the present value of estimated
discounted future cash flows from the film production in progress. No impairment loss has been recognised in this respect for

the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

The amount of production in progress expected to be recovered after one year is HK$472,000 (2012: HK$2,413,000).

22 RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(@) Trade receivables

The Group
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$’'000
(GESEIED))
Trade receivables 126,703 83,173
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (117) (117)
126,586 83,056

(i)  Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade receivables (which are included in trade and
other receivables), based on the invoice date and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

The Group
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
(GESEIE)
Within 1 month 107,178 27,751
1 to 2 months 4,405 45,545
2 to 3 months 3,559 1,817
Over 3 months 11,444 7,943
126,586 83,056

The Group usually grants credit periods ranging from one to three months. Each customer has a credit limit and
overdue balances are regularly reviewed by management.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, the concentration of credit risk is not considered significant. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing. The carrying amounts of the trade receivables approximate their fair value. Further details on
the Group's credit policy are set out in note 29(a) to the financial statements.
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22 RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Trade receivables (continued)
(ii) Impairment losses of trade receivables
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly.

There were no movements in the allowance for doubtful debts during the years ended 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2012.

As at 31 December 2013, the allowance for doubtful debts are HK$117,000 (2012: HK$117,000).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is

as follows:
The Group

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
(GESEE)
Neither past due nor impaired 115,142 75,113
Less than three months past due 4,991 2,836
Past due over three months 6,453 5,107
11,444 7,943
126,586 83,056

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom there were
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

(iii) At 31 December 2013, trade receivables of the Group included amounts totalling HK$25,464,000 (2012:
HK$5,137,000) due from related companies and amounts totalling of HK$ 1,243,000 (2012: HK$1,090,000) due
from a joint venture, which are unsecured, interest-free and recoverable within one year.

(b)  All of the other receivables, deposits and prepayments (including amounts due from related companies and joint
ventures) are expected to be recoverable within one year.
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DEPOSITS AND CASH

The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(QESENE))

Deposits at banks 312,420 356,764 - -
Cash at bank and in hand 269,021 265,117 93 20
581,441 621,881 93 20

Less: Pledged deposits for bank loans (46,905) (46,850) - -
Cash and cash equivalents 534,536 575,031 93 20

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Deposits at banks are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and the pledged deposits approximate their
fair values.

Deposits and cash as at 31 December 2013 include HK$312,614,000 (2012: HK$332,840,000) equivalent placed with banks

in Mainland China, the remittance of which are subject to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the government of Mainland China.

BANK LOANS

(a) At 31 December 2013, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

The Group

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
Within 1 year or on demand 323,581 285,098
After 1 year but within 2 years 172,890 130,409
After 2 years but within 5 years 356,856 169,074
After 5 years 81,830 25,871
611,576 325,354
935,157 610,452

Bank loans
— secured 935,157 610,452
— unsecured - -
935,157 610,452

All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost.

All bank loans bear interest at floating interest rates which approximate to market rates of interest.
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24 BANK LOANS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

At 31 December 2013, the bank loans were secured by:

(i)  an office property of a subsidiary located in Hong Kong;

(ii)  deposits of subsidiaries of HK$46,905,000 (2012: HK$46,850,000); and
(iii)  corporate guarantees from the Company and two subsidiaries.

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the consolidated
statement of financial position ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the
Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants, is up to date with the scheduled repayments of the
term loans and does not consider it probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand repayment for so long
as the Group continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set
out in note 29(b) to the financial statements. As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down facilities had been breached.

The bank loans of the Group were denominated in the following original currencies:

The Group
2013 2012
‘000 ‘000
(Restated)
Renminbi 339,749 225,750
Hong Kong dollars 503,676 332,103

25 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

At 31 December 2013, the Group had obligations under finance leases repayable as follows:

The Group
2013 2012
Present Present

value of the Total value of the Total

minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease payments  lease payments lease payments lease payments

HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Within 1 year 8,988 10,697 4,905 6,636
After 1 year but within 2 years 10,389 11,575 7,162 8,317
After 2 years but within 5 years 7,656 8,503 5,194 5,565
18,045 20,078 12,356 13,882

27,033 30,775 17,261 20,518
Less: Total future interest expenses (3,742) (3,257)
Present value of lease obligations 27,033 17,261
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUED CHARGES AND DEFERRED
REVENUE

(@) Trade payables

The ageing analysis of trade payables as of the end of the reporting period:

The Group
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
Current to 3 months 75,545 64,029
Within 4 to 6 months 7,599 14,185
Within 7 to 12 months 1,591 1,760
Over 1 year 16,402 15,301
101,137 95,275

At 31 December 2013, trade payables of the Group included the amounts totalling HK$16,679,000 (2012:
HK$233,000) due to related companies which were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b) Al of the other payables and accrued charges (including amounts due to related companies) are expected to be settled
within one year or are repayable on demand.

(c) Al of the deferred revenue are expected to be settled within one year.
27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position represents:

The Group
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
Provision for taxation for the year 13,564 3,392
Tax paid for the year (6,030) (8,142)
Tax refunded for the year 159 -
Balance of tax provision relating to prior years 2,178 12,649
9,871 7,899

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The Group
2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$’'000
(GESEIED))

Net deferred tax asset recognised in the consolidated statement

of financial position 29,512 22,235

Net deferred tax liability recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position (12,338) (12,112)
17,174 10,123
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (continued)
The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the years are as follows:

The Group
Withholding
tax on

Tax losses unremitted
recognised earnings Total
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Deferred tax arising from:

At 1 January 2012 (Restated) (6,947) 8,002 1,055
Exchange adjustments (Restated) (55) - (55)
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss (note 7(a)) (Restated) (15,233) 4,110 (11,123)
At 31 December 2012 (Restated) (22,235) 12,112 (10,123)
At 1 January 2013 (22,235) 12,112 (10,123)
Exchange adjustments (783) - (783)
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss (note 7(a)) (6,494) 226 (6.268)
At 31 December 2013 (29,512) 12,338 (17,174)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

At 31 December 2013, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of accumulated tax losses of
approximately HK$566,840,000 (2012: HK$564,843,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire under
current tax legislation except for the balances of HK$2,298,000 (2012: HK$11,546,000) which can be only carried
forward for five years under the relevant jurisdiction.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2013, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax liabilities (2012: HK$Nil) for taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries or joint ventures as the Group has no
significant liability to additional tax should such amounts be remitted.

At 31 December 2013, the Company does not have any material deferred taxation assets and liabilities (2012: HK$Nil).
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(@) Share capital

2013 2012

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
HK$'000 HK$’'000

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each 6,000,000,000 600,000 6,000,000,000 600,000

Ordinary shares,
issued and fully paid:

At 1 January 2,679,819,248 267,982 2,684,194,248 268,419
Shares repurchased (i) - - (4,375,000) (437)
At 31 December 2,679,819,248 267,982 2,679,819,248 267,982
Notes:

(i) Share option scheme

Equity-settled share-based transactions

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 11 November 2009, the Company terminated the old share option
scheme (the “Old Share Option Scheme"”) and adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”). The Old
Share Option Scheme was initially valid and effective for the period from 28 November 2001 to 11 November 2009, but the
outstanding share options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme remain in full force and effect. The purpose of the Old
Share Option Scheme was to provide incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operation. The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the growth of the Group and to provide the Group with a more flexible means to
reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits to the eligible participants. Eligible participants of the share option
scheme include the Company’s directors, including independent non-executive directors, and other employees of the Group, and
shareholders of the Company.

The New Share Option Scheme became effective on 11 November 2009 and will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent non-executive director
who is the grantee of the option).

The offer of a grant of share options must be accepted within 30 days inclusive of, and from the day of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The vesting period, the exercise period and the number of shares subject to
each option are determinable by the directors. The exercise period may not exceed 10 years commencing on such date on or
after the date of grant as the directors of the Company may determine in granting the share options and ending on such date as
the directors of the Company may determine in granting the share options. Save as determined by the directors of the Company
and provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant share option, there is no general requirement that a share option must be
held for any minimum period before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of grant of the share options; (i) the
average Stock Exchange’s closing price of the Company'’s shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(@) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i) Share option scheme (continued)

Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)

The maximum number of shares of the Company issuable upon exercise of all share options granted and to be granted under
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (if any) is an amount equivalent to 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue as at 11 November 2009. This limit can be refreshed by the shareholders of the Company in
a general meeting in accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options granted to each eligible participant under the New Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to the
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at the shareholders’ meeting.

Adjustments to share options and exercise prices

As a result of the subdivision of shares in November 2009, the number of shares issuable under the share options granted under
the Old Share Option Scheme and the exercise prices were adjusted as stated in the table below. All share options under the
New Share Option Scheme were granted subsequent to the subdivision of shares in November 2009.

The movements of share options during the year ended 31 December 2013 and the outstanding share options held by the
Directors, chief executive and other employees of the Group as at 31 December 2013 are set out in the following table:

Number of Closing price Number of
share per Share share
options Lapsed immediately options
outstanding during the before the  outstanding
Name or Date of Exercise asat  year ended date of as at
category of grant of price per 1January 31 December grant of 31 December
participant share options share Exercise period 2013 2013 share options 2013
HK$ HK$
Director
Huang Shao-Hua 23 September 0.453 23 September 2009 to 200,000 - 0.451 200,000
George 2009 22 September 2014
Wu Kebo 23 September 0.453 23 September 2009 to 60,000,000 - 0.451 60,000,000
2009 22 September 2014
Wu Keyan 23 September 0.453 23 September 2009 to 700,000 - 0.451 700,000
2009 22 September 2014
Li Pei Sen 23 September 0.453 23 September 2009 to 200,000 - 0.451 200,000
2009 22 September 2014
Leung Man Kit 23 September 0.453 23 September 2009 to 200,000 - 0.451 200,000
2009 22 September 2014
Tan Boon Pin 23 September 0.453 23 September 2009 to 1,200,000 - 0.451 1,200,000
Simon 2009 22 September 2014
Other
participants
In aggregate 23 September 0.453 23 September 2009 to 1,050,000 (450,000) 600,000
2009 22 September 2014

63,550,000 (450,000) 63,100,000
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(a) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

U}

(i)

Share option scheme (continued)

Adjustments to share options and exercise prices (continued)

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Company’s directors, their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted is measured based on the Black-Scholes model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as an input into this model. The following table lists the inputs to the model used for
the year ended 31 December 2009.

Date of grant
23 September
2009 23 September

(to directors and 2009

chief executive (to other

officer) participants)

Fair value at measurement date* HK$0.123 HK$0.116
Share price* HK$0.453 HK$0.453
Exercise price* HK$0.453 HK$0.453
Expected volatility 50% 50%
Option life 5 years 5 years
Expected life 2.3 years 2.0 years
Expected dividends 2.8% 2.8%
Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange Fund Notes) 1.766% 1.766%

* adjusted for subdivision of shares.

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility (calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the share
options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based on publicly available information. Expected dividends are
based on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

The share options granted to Mr. Wu Kebo (director) was under a service condition of three years. This condition has not been
taken into account in the grant date fair value measurement of the services received. No other feature of the options granted
was incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 63,100,000 share options outstanding under the Old Share Option
Scheme and the New Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 63,100,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company, representing
approximately 2.35% of the Company’s shares in issue as at the end of the reporting period, and additional share capital of
HK$6,310,000 and share premium account of HK$22,274,000 (before issue expenses).

Shares repurchased
During the year, the Company did not acquire any shares (2012: 4,375,000 shares) through purchases on the open market. The
total amount paid to acquire the shares during the year was HK$Nil (2012: HK$1,227,000).
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Reserves

(0]

(i)

The Group
Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Company

Share Capital
Share option  redemption  Contributed Retained

premium reserve reserve surplus profits Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

At 1 January 2012 665,625 5,934 8,396 271,644 230,939 1,182,538
Profit for the year - - - - 88,781 88,781
Equity-settled share-based

transactions - 1,837 - - - 1,837
Shares repurchased (790) - - - - (790)

Transfer from retained
profits on capital
redemption - - 437 - (437) -

At 31 December 2012 664,835 7,771 8,833 271,644 319,283 1,272,366

Share Capital
Share option redemption Contributed Retained

premium reserve reserve surplus profits Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 January 2013 664,835 7,771 8,833 271,644 319,283 1,272,366
Profit for the year - - - - 98,347 98,347
Transfer to retained profits

on lapse of share options - (52) - - 52 -
At 31 December 2013 664,835 7,719 8,833 271,644 417,682 1,370,713

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

0}

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve
The application of the share premium account is governed by Sections 40 and 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value of the number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(t)(ii) to the financial statements.

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the share capital of the Company repurchased
and cancelled.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents (i) the difference between the nominal value of the Company’s shares in
issue, in exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries, and the aggregate net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition; and (i) the net transfer of HK$80,000,000 after setting off the
accumulated losses from the share premium account pursuant to the Company’s capital reorganisation in May
2007. Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is
distributable to shareholders of the Company.
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(9]

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v)  Reserve funds
In accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC, the companies’ established therein are required to
transfer a certain percentage of their profits after tax to the reserve funds until the balance reaches 50% the
registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations, the reserve funds may be
used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation by way of paid-up capital.

(vi) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(x) to the financial statements.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to equity holders of the Company
representing the retained profits, amounted to HK$417,682,000 (2012: HK$319,283,000). In addition, the Company’s
share premium account, contributed surplus and capital redemption reserve in an aggregate amount of
HK$945,312,000 (2012: HK$945,312,000), as at 31 December 2013 may be distributed to shareholders in certain
circumstance as prescribed by Section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its gearing structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the gearing structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its gearing structure calculated on the basis of external borrowings, which includes bank loans and
obligations under finance lease over total assets.

The Group's strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio below 35%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group
may raise new equity financing or sell assets to reduce debt. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as
follows:

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

(Restated)

Bank loans and total external borrowings 935,157 610,452
Obligations under finance leases 27,033 17,261
962,190 627,713

Total assets 3,169,260 2,653,202
Gearing ratio 30.4% 23.7%
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, currency and interest rate risks arises in the normal course of the Group'’s business. These risks are
limited by the Group's financial management policies and practices described below.

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables. The Group has established credit control
policies of which credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures for debts recovery are in place to
minimise the credit risk. In addition, management reviews the recoverable amount of each individual receivable
regularly to ensure that adequate impairment allowances are made for irrecoverable amounts. With such policies in
place, the Group has been able to maintain its bad debts at minimal level.

The Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, the concentration of credit risk is not
significant.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay. In addition, as the deposits received does not have fixed repayment
terms, the carrying amount has not been included in the table.

For a term loan subject to repayment on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflows based on the contractual repayment schedule and, separately, the impact to the

timing of the cash outflows if the lender was to invoke the unconditional right to call the loan with immediate effect.

The Group

As at 31 December 2013

Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade payables 101,137 101,137 101,137 - - -
Other payables and
accrued charges 155,634 155,634 155,634 - - -
Bank loans 935,157 1,076,914 361,794 225,875 396,721 92,524
Obligations under
finance leases 27,033 30,775 10,697 11,575 8,503 -
1,218,961 1,364,460 629,262 237,450 405,224 92,524
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

(9]

The Group (continued)

As at 31 December 2012 (Restated)

Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Trade payables 95,275 95,275 95,275 - - -
Other payables and
accrued charges 162,246 162,246 162,246 - - -
Bank loans 610,452 715,859 248,745 212,082 227,790 27,242
Obligations under
finance lease 17,261 20,518 6,636 8,317 5,565 -
885,234 993,898 512,902 220,399 233,355 27,242
The Company

The earliest settlement dates of the Company’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are all within one
year or on demand and the contractual amounts of the financial liabilities are all equal to their carrying amounts.

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate. Exchange differences arising on settling or translating these
foreign currency monetary items at rates different from those at dates of transactions giving rise to these monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group enters into transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. Consequently, the Group is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of the relevant functional currency
relative to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of
the Group's assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than the relevant functional currency. As the Hong
Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group does not expect any significant movements in the HKD/
USD exchange rate. The currency giving rise to foreign currency risk is primarily Renminbi and Singapore dollars.
Management of the Group continuously monitors the Group's exposure to such foreign currency risks to ensure they
are at manageable levels.
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

() Currency risk (continued)
(i) Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional currency to which they relate.

The Group

Exposure to foreign currencies
2013 2012

Hong Kong Singapore  Hong Kong Singapore
dollars Renminbi dollars dollars Renminbi dollars
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

Other receivables, deposits

and prepayments - 10,879 1,570 - 10,835 14
Deposits and cash - 98,808 173 - 186,533 1,867
Other payables and

accrued charges - (17,181) - - (4,009) (35)
Deferred revenue - - - - (988) -
Intercompany borrowings* (304,370) 109,661 - (290,228) 104,461 -
Net exposure to

currency risk (304,370) 202,167 1,743 (290,228) 296,832 1,846
* An intercompany loan denominated in Hong Kong dollars was made to a subsidiary located in the PRC, of which the

functional currency is RMB. Thus, the loan recorded by the subsidiary is subject to foreign currency risk.

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group's profit after taxation and retained profits in
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group had significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period. Other components of equity would not be affected by changes in
the foreign exchange rates:

2013 2012

Increase/  Effect on profit Increase/ Effect on profit

(decrease) after taxation and (decrease) after taxation and

in foreign retained in foreign retained

exchange rates earnings exchange rates earnings

HK$'000 HK$'000

Renminbi 5% 12,838 5% 18,300
(5)% (12,838) (5)% (18,300)

Singapore dollars 5% 533 5% 585
(5)% (533) (5)% (585)
Hong Kong dollars 5% (15,219) 5% (14,511)
(5)% 15,219 (5)% 14,511
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Currency risk (continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to the Group’s exposure to currency risk for
financial instruments in existence at that date, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. The stated changes represent management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next annual end of the reporting period. The analysis has been
performed on the same basis as for 2012.

Currency risk as defined by HKFRS 7 arises from financial instruments denominated in a currency that is not the
functional currency and which are of a monetary nature. Differences resulting from the translation of financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures into the Group’s presentation currency are
therefore not taken into consideration for the purpose of the sensitivity analysis for currency risk.

(d) Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily to the Group's short and long-term loans. Borrowings at
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk.

The Group manages its interest rate risk exposures in accordance with defined policies through regular review with a
focus on reducing the Group's overall cost of funding as well as having regard to the floating/fixed rate mix appropriate
to its current business portfolio.

(i)  Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period:

2013 2012
Effective rate Effective rate

% HK$'000 % HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated)

Net fixed rate borrowings:

Obligations under finance
leases (note 25) 4.33%-10.5% 27,033 10.5% 17,261

Variable rate borrowings:

Bank loans (note 24) 2.25%-7.86% 935,157 3.44%-7.6% 610,452

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 1% in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased the Group's profit after taxation and total equity by
approximately HK$7,645,000 (2012: HK$4,990,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk in existence at that
date. The 1% increase/decrease represents management’s assessment of a reasonable possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next annual end of the reporting period. The analysis has been performed on the
same basis as for 2012.
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e) Fair values measurement
(i)  The fair values of receivables, bank balances and other current assets, payables and accrued charges and current
borrowings are assumed to approximate their carrying amounts due to the short-term maturities of these assets
and liabilities.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December
2012 and 2013. Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.
Given these terms it is not meaningful to disclose their fair value.

(ii)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs.

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognised transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

(f) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
The Group offsets certain recognised financial assets and financial liabilities when they have a right to set-off these
amounts against the same counterparty and they intend to settle these on a net basis. A summary of the financial
assets and financial liabilities set-off is as follows:

Net amounts of
financial assets/

(financial

liabilities)

Gross amount presented in

of recognised the consolidated

financial assets/ statement of

(financial Amounts financial

liabilities) set off position

HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2013

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 205,727 (45,195) 160,532
Other payables and accrued charges (200,829) 45,195 (155,634)
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30 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2013 not provided for in the financial statements in respect of the
acquisition of fixed assets are as follows:

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)

Contracted for:

Mainland China 93,244 78,215

Authorised but not contracted for:

Hong Kong 1,791 -
Mainland China 613,387 1,167,863
615,178 1,167,863
708,422 1,246,078

(b) Operating lease commitments
(i)  Aslessor
At 31 December 2013, the Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease
are receivable as follows:

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000
(GESEE)

Lease on premise expiring

— within one year 2,500 -
— after one year but within five years 10,882 -
— after five year 28,804 -

42,186 -

The Group leases its building under operating lease. The lease runs for twelve years. The lease is subject to
contingent rentals which are charged at 12%-15%.
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30 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Operating lease commitments (CONTINUED)
(i)  Aslessee
At 31 December 2013, the Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are payable as follows:

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000

(Restated)

Leases on premises expiring

— within one year 229,940 217,311
— after one year but within five years 845,867 663,134
— after five years 1,673,526 1,468,723

2,749,333 2,349,168

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of office premises and cinemas held under operating leases. The
leases typically run for one to twenty years.

Certain non-cancellable operating leases are subject to contingent rent payments, which are charged at 7% to
28% (2012: 7% to 28%) of their monthly or annual gross box office takings in excess of the base rents as set
out in the respective lease agreements. In addition, 10%-12% of the theatre confectionary sales and advertising
income are also charged as payments under certain leases.

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2013, the Company has issued guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries and a joint venture amounting to HK$1,315,060,000 (2012: HK$1,012,254,000) and HK$30,600,000 (2012:
HK$31,700,000) respectively. At 31 December 2013, banking facilities of HK$942,160,000 (2012: HK$614,920,000) and
HK$Nil (2012: HK$31,700,000) had been utilised by the subsidiaries and a joint venture respectively.

At 31 December 2013, the directors do not consider it probable that a claim will be made against the Company under any of
the guarantees. The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect of bank guarantees as their fair values
cannot be reliably measured and no transaction price was incurred.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of their respective business. Having
reviewed outstanding claims and taking into account legal advice received, the directors are of the opinion that even if the
claims are found to be valid, there will be no material adverse effect on the financial position of the Group.
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32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions.

2013 2012
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
Office rental paid () 4,236 4,728
Service fee income from a joint venture (i) 477 975
Income from leasing of cinema facilities (iii) 2,100 2,066
Cinema in-foyer advertising income (iv) 7,452 1,056
Cinema screen advertising fee income v) 23,723 13,889
Cinema marketing service fee expense (vi) - 1,026
Rental deposit and prepayment for leasing of property (vii) 50,800 51,170
Cinema circuit management service fee income (viii) 2,150 -
Notes:
(i) This represents office rental expenses for three office areas paid to related companies, which wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Kebo, a director

and a substantial shareholder of the Group. The rental expenses were charged on nominal commercial terms.

(ii) This represents service fees for ticketing system maintenance and enhancement received from a joint venture of the Group. The fees
were charged on normal commercial terms.

(iii) This represents the income received from a related company for leasing certain cinema facilities at Beijing Sanlitun cinema. The fees were
charged on normal commercial terms.

(iv) This represents PRC cinemas in-foyer advertising income received from a subsidiary of Orange Sky charged on normal commercial terms.

v) This represents cinema screen advertising income received from two subsidiaries of Orange Sky for granting exclusive rights of screen
advertising air-time in the Group’s Hong Kong and PRC cinemas. The fees were charged on normal commercial terms.

(vi) This represents marketing service fees paid to two related companies for providing promotional services for PRC cinemas. The fees were
charged on normal commercial terms.

(vii)  This represents rental deposit and rental prepayment paid to a related company, which is indirectly held by Mr. Wu Kebo. As at 31
December 2013, the Group had paid rental deposit and rental prepayment of HK$Nil and HK$50,800,000 (2012: HK$1,849,500 and
HK$49,320,000) respectively.

The terms of the rental agreement were negotiated on normal commercial terms.

(viii) ~ This represents management service fees paid to a related company for introducing top-class cinema circuit to PRC cinemas. The fees
were charged at 1.2% of net box office receipts.

The transactions shown in notes (i), (iii), (iv), (v), (vii) and (viii) above with related companies constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The continuing connected transactions were either properly

reviewed by the independent non-executive directors or constituted de minimis transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.

None of the other related party transactions set out above constituted connected transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.
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33 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Note 29 contains information about the assumptions and their risk factors relating to financial risk management. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(i)  Assessment of the useful economic lives of fixed assets
The Group estimates the useful economic lives of fixed assets based on the periods over which the assets are expected
to be available for use. The Group reviews annually their estimated useful lives, based on factors that include asset
utilisation, internal technical evaluation, technological changes, environmental and anticipated use of the assets
tempered by related industry benchmark information. It is possible that future results of operations could be materially
affected by changes in these estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned. A reduction in the
estimated useful lives of fixed assets would increase depreciation charges and decrease non-current assets.

(ii)  Assessment of impairment of assets

The Group reviews internal and external sources of information at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased. The Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount when any such indication exists. The recoverable
amount of an asset, or of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, is the greater of its net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the assets. The
preparation of projected future cash flows involves the estimation of future revenue and operating costs which are
based on reasonable assumptions supported by information available to the Group. Changes in these estimates would
result in additional impairment provisions or reversal of impairment in future years.

(iii) Assessment of impairment of available-for-sale securities
The Group reviews available-for-sale securities at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required to determine whether a decline in the fair value of an
investment is significant or prolonged. In making this judgement, the Group considers a number of factors including
the historical data on market volatility, the price of the specific investment, industry and sector performance, and
financial information regarding the issuers of the investment.

(iv) Assessment of impairment of film rights
The Group reviews film rights ageing analysis at the end of each reporting period. The recoverable amount of film
rights is assessed with reference to a value-in-use calculation as at the end of the reporting period. The key assumptions
include the discount rate, budgeted gross margin and estimated turnover based on past practices, experience and
expectations in the film distribution and production industry. Changes in these estimates and assumptions would result
in additional impairment provision or reversal of impairment in future years.

(v)  Assessment of impairment of goodwill
The Group has performed an impairment test for goodwill in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2(m)
(i) to the financial statements. For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill acquired has been allocated to
individual cash-generating units which are reviewed for impairment based on forecast operating performance and cash
flows. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is determined based on value-in-use calculations.
Cash flow projections are prepared on the basis of reasonable assumptions reflective of prevailing and future market
conditions, and are discounted appropriately.

(vi) Deferred tax assets
The Group reviews the carrying amounts of deferred taxes at the end of each reporting period and reduces deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax assets to be utilised. However, there is no assurance that the Group will generate sufficient taxable
income to allow all or part of its deferred tax assets to be utilised.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(vii) Estimation of fair value of investment properties
Investment properties are stated at market value based on the valuation performed by an independent firm of
professional valuers at 31 December 2013. The fair value of investment properties is assessed annually by independent
qualified valuers, by reference to market evidence of recent transaction and/or on the basis of discounted cash flow
projections based on estimates of future rental income from properties using current market rentals and yields as
inputs. The assumptions adopted in the property valuations are based on the market conditions existing at 31
December 2013, with reference to current market transactions and the appropriate capitalisation rate.

(viii) Impairment of interest in subsidiaries

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for the Company’s interest in subsidiaries, the recoverable
amounts of the assets need to be determined. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and the
value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate the selling price because quoted market prices for these assets may not
be readily available. In determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated by the assets are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant judgement relating to items such as level of turnover and amount of
operating costs of the subsidiaries. The Company uses all readily available information in determining an amount that is
reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of items such as turnover and operating costs of subsidiaries.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a few amendments and a new standard which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2013 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 1 January 2014
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments Undetermined
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period

of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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35 SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of principal subsidiaries which affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 2(d) and have been consolidated into the Group financial

statements.

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of company

Place of
incorporation/
operation

Issued equity capital

Group’s
effective
interest

Principal activities

ERBREAFREHERR AR

City Entertainment Corporation Limited

Gala Film Distribution Limited

Golden Harvest Cinemas Holding
Limited

Golden Harvest Entertainment
International Limited

Golden Harvest Films Distribution
Holding Limited

Golden Harvest (Marks) Limited

Orange Sky Golden Harvest Cinemas
(China) Company Limited"*

Golden Harvest Treasury Limited

Golden Screen Limited

Golden Sky Pacific Limited

M Cinemas Company Limited

Orange Sky Golden Harvest
Entertainment Company Limited
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PRC

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands

PRC

British Virgin Islands

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Registered capital
RMB3,000,000

300,000,000 shares of
HK$1 each

49,990,000 shares of
HK$1 each and
10,000 non-voting
deferred shares* of
HK$1 each

1 share of US$1

1,000 shares of US$1 each

1 share of US$1

1 share of US$1

Registered capital
RMB450,000,000

1 share of US$1

8,750,000 shares of
HK$1 each

2 shares of HK$1 each

7,000,000 shares of
HK$10 each

100 shares of HK$1 each
and 114,000,000
non-voting deferred
shares* of HK$1 each

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Investment, production and
distribution of motion
pictures and acts as an
advertising agent

Investment Holding

Distribution of motion pictures

Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment holding

Holding of trademark

Theatre operation and
investment holding

Provision of finance to
group companies

Investment holding

Investment holding

Theatre operation

Investment holding
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35 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of Group's
incorporation/ effective
Name of company operation Issued equity capital interest  Principal activities
Orange Sky Golden Harvest Motion Hong Kong 94,000,000 shares of 100%  Film production and
Pictures Company Limited HK$1 each investment holding
Panasia Films Limited Hong Kong 23,000 shares of 100%  Distribution of motion pictures
HK$1,000 each and its related audio visual

products and acts as an
advertising agent

Shanghai Golden Harvest Media PRC Registered capital 100%  Distribution of motion pictures
Management Company Limited""" US$500,000

Except Golden Harvest Entertainment International Limited, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

# For Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment Company Limited, the deferred shares carry no rights to dividends and carry the right to
receive half of the surplus on a return of capital exceeding HK$1,000,000,000,000,000. Apart from the above, all other deferred shares
carry rights to dividends for any given financial year of the respective companies when the net profit available for distribution exceeds
HK$1,000,000,000. They also carry rights to receive one half of the surplus on a return of capital of the respective companies exceeding
HK$500,000,000,000. None of the deferred shares carry any rights to vote at general meetings.

" The equity interest of the entity is held by the PRC nationals on behalf of the Group.

The Company is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise under the PRC Law.

e Shanghai Golden Harvest Media Management Company Limited is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise under the PRC Law.
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